
The District’s regular Board meeting is held on the first Thursday of every month. This notice and agenda 
is posted on the District’s web site (www.spmud.ca.gov) and posted in the District’s outdoor bulletin 
board at the SPMUD Headquarters at the above address. Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with 
disabilities. Requests for other considerations should be made through the District Headquarters at 
(916)786-8555.   

AGENDA 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

President Gerald Mitchell,  Ward 1 
Director William Dickinson, Ward 2 
Director John Murdock,  Ward 3 
Director Victor Markey,  Ward 4 
Director James Williams,  Ward 5 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. CONSENT ITEMS [pg 3 to 50]

Consent items should be considered together as one motion. Any item(s) requested to be removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Items. 

ACTION: (Voice vote) 
Motion to approve the consent items for the February 1, 2018 meeting 

1. REVISED MINUTES from the December 7, 2017 Meeting.
2. MINUTES from the January 4, 2018 Meeting.
3. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE in the amount of $4,294,058.94 through January 25, 2018.
4. MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT in the total amount of $54,429,397 through January 25, 2018.
5. RESOLUTION #18-03 - SERVICE LATERAL CIPP LINER & SEAL PROGRAM CONTRACT with NorCal

Pipeline Services for $347,859. 
6. RESOLUTION #18-04 – MANHOLE LINER PROGRAM CONTRACT with SoCal Pacific Construction

Corp, dba National Coating & Lining Co. for $89,800. 
7. RESOLUTION #18-05 – GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT through December 1,

2020. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Items not on the Agenda may be presented to the Board at this time; however, the Board can take no 
action. 
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VI. BOARD BUSINESS

Board action may occur on any identified agenda item.  Any member of the public may directly address 
the Board on any identified agenda item of interest, either before or during the Board's consideration 
of that item.  

1. FISCAL YEAR 16/17 AUDIT ACCEPTANCE [pg 51 to 122]
Representatives from Certified Public Accountants Munn, Urrutia & Nelson LLP will present the Audit 
report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017.  

Action Requested: (Voice Vote) 
Staff Recommends that: 

1. The Board of Directors receive the Fiscal Year 16/17 Audit Report.

2. CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL OF MID-YEAR ADJUSTMENTS TO THE FY 17/18 BUDGET   [pg 123 to 126]
Staff will report to the Board the mid-year budget adjustments recommended for FY 17/18. 

Action Requested: (Voice Vote) 
Staff Recommends that: 

1. The Board of Directors approve the mid-year adjustments to the FY 17/18 Budget.

3. SOUTH PLACER WASTEWATER AUTHORITY (SPWA) BOARD MEETING REPORT  [Verbal rpt] 

President Mitchell, the District representative to the SPWA Board, will provide a brief update on the 
recent actions and activities of the SPWA. 

Action Requested: (None) 

VII. REPORTS [pg 127 to 134]

The purpose of these reports is to provide information on projects, programs, staff actions and 
committee meetings that are of general interest to the Board and public. No decisions are to be 
made on these issues.  

1. Legal Counsel (A. Brown)

2. General Manager (H. Niederberger)

1) FSD, ASD & TSD Reports

2) Informational items

3. Director’s Comments:

Directors may make brief announcements or brief reports on their own activities.  They may ask 
questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter of 
business on a future agenda. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

If there is no other Board business the President will adjourn the meeting to its next regular meeting 
on March 1, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. 
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 BOARD MINUTES 
SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Meeting Location Date Time 

Regular District Office December 7, 2017 4:30 p.m. 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board 
of Directors was called to order with President Markey presiding at 4:30 p.m.    

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS:
Present: Will Dickinson, Jerry Mitchell, Vic Markey, John Murdock, Jim Williams 

Absent: None 
Vacant: None 

Staff: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 
Sam Rose, Superintendent 
Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

Others: None 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  President Markey led the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. CONSENT ITEMS:
1. MINUTES from the October 5, 2017 Board Meeting.
2. MINUTES from the November 2, 2017 Board Meeting.
3. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE in the amount of $1,935,918.80 through November 29, 2017.
4. MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT in the total amount of $56,274,136 through November 29,

2017. 
5. BILL OF SALE Acceptance of Bill of Sale for Sewer Improvements located at Stanford Ranch

Congregate Care, estimated value of $47,775.
6. FINANCIAL IMPACT OF RESOLUTIONS #17-13 & #17-14 MOU’S WITH DISTRICT EMPLOYEES &

MANAGERS

Director Dickinson pulled items 2,3 & 6 from the consent calendar for further discussion. Director 
Dickinson made a motion to approve the remaining items on the consent calendar; a second was 
made by Director Williams; the motion carried 5-0.   

Director Dickinson asked for clarification for the minutes from the November 2, 2017 meeting.  He 
asked Legal Counsel for the correct report out from the Closed Session. Those minutes will be revised 
to read, “The board went into open session and voted 4-0 to approve the extension of the General 
Managers Employment Agreement to March 1, 2018 to allow for continued negotiations.”  Director 
Dickinson made a motion to approve the minutes as amended; a second was made by Director 
Murdock; the motion carried 5-0. 

Director Dickinson asked questions regarding the accounts payable items asking for specifics on 
payments.  Staff responded to Director Dickinson’s questions, providing clarifications regarding the 
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expenditures.  Director Dickinson made a motion to approve the accounts payable report; a second 
was made by Director Williams; the motion carried 5-0. 

Director Dickinson stated that he appreciated the information provided in consent item #6 regarding 
the Financial Impact of the MOU’s with District employees & managers.  Director Dickinson asked if 
the District was fully funded with CalPERS and if the net numbers in the report reflected that. GM 
Niederberger asked if Director Dickinson was referring to the UAL and stated that the funding amount 
for the Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) is a separate line item within the budget, not included in the 
MOU financial impact report.  Further clarifying that the UAL is based upon the actuarial analysis of 
GASB 68.  Director Dickinson asked if the UAL had increased due to the salary increases effective 
07/01/17. GM Niederberger stated that the UAL is the amortized dollar amount needed to fund past 
service credit accrued for members currently receiving benefits and active members based upon 
actuarial data. He further stated that the table in the financial impact report includes an accounting 
of both the reduction in the employers payment now that employees are paying their contribution, 
as well as the additional District contributions to CalPERS due to the higher salaries from the MOU 
negotiations.  Director Dickinson made a motion to accept item #5; a second was made by Director 
Murdock; the motion carried 5-0.   

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
President Markey opened the Public comments. Hearing no comments, public comments were closed. 

VI. BOARD BUSINESS
1. 2ND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE #17-04 LOW INCOME LIFELINE RATE ASSISTANCE
PROGRAM    
GM Niederberger reported that this was the 2nd reading of Ordinance #17-04 which creates a low-
income lifeline rate assistance program which becomes effective on January 1, 2018.  Legal Counsel 
stated that a typographical error had occurred on the Ordinance, regarding the start date of the 
program on January 1, 2018.  He stated that the correction does not involve any substantive change 
and the Board may vote on the Ordinance.  Director Dickinson recalled that the Board had asked 
questions regarding changes of the timing of the PG&E program requirements and the potential of 
having a lottery should the District receive many applicants for this program.   

GM Niederberger explained that the program provides residential customers, who own their own 
home and meet income criteria, the opportunity to apply for a $5 per month discount.  The program 
requires that the home owner establishes their eligibility for the PG&E CARE program, which will be 
used to qualify for the SPMUD Lifeline Program. Hearing no public comments, the item was brought 
to the Board for their discussion and comments.   
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Director Mitchell made a motion to waive the 2nd reading of Ordinance #17-34; a second was made 
by Director Williams; the motion carried 5-0.  
Director Dickinson made a motion to adopt Ordinance #17-34; a second was made by Director 
Williams; the motion carried 5-0. 

VII. REPORTS:
1. District General Counsel (A. Brown): General Counsel Brown stated that he was in court

12/07/17 for the Dickson eminent domain case, and he would provide further detail at a later
closed session meeting.  He reported that the District prevailed on its motion for possession of
the easement, which allows the District to continue with the Loomis Diversion Project.

2. General Manager (H. Niederberger): GM Niederberger had no further report.  He did report
that the Auditors report had been delayed for presentation to the Board due to the GASB
reporting components.
A. ASD, FSD & TSD Reports: No additional reports.
B. Information Items: No additional items were reported.

3. Directors Comments:   Director Williams reported that he attended the Loomis Economic
Development Meeting and had nothing major to report other than the Loomis Diversion Project.  
Director Mitchell discussed items on the calendar of future Board meeting items and suggested that 
the Board might hold a workshop to discuss future facility capabilities for SPMUD into the future, 
exploring if additional space may be needed, and any potential interest in expansion discussions with 
the County.  GM Niederberger suggested holding a workshop at the April or May 2018 Board meeting, 
to bring ideas to the Board for discussion. 

Director Williams suggested that it may be a good idea to move the July meeting date to June 28, 2018 
to accommodate the Holiday schedules for Board members.  It was decided to move the date as 
suggested.   

Director Murdock inquired about railroad groundwater processing and disposal for Kinder Morgan.  DE 
Nielsen stated that the District continues to work with them and they are up to date with their permit 
renewals, District Inspectors have been coordinating and inspecting under the terms of the permit. 
They are current with their payments.   Additional discussion followed regarding the property and any 
liability for the District regarding their discharges.  GM Niederberger stated that the District can request 
a report from the CVRWQCB on the status of their operation. 

President Markey reported that he had walked the Loomis Diversion Line Project site and asked for a 
brief update on the buried pipeline.  DE Nielsen stated that approximately 1,100 feet of pipe has been 
installed on Diaz and Betty Lane.   

Director Mitchell stated that he will be attending an SPWA meeting in January 2018. 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION

Public Employment - GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT RENEWAL 
(Per Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54957) 
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The Board adjourned into closed session at 5:45 p.m. for the General Manager Performance 
Evaluation and Contract Renewal. The Board heard a report from the District Counsel concerning 
ongoing negotiations. The Board reconvened into open session at 6:43 p.m. and reported that 
direction was given; No action was taken. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m. to the next regularly scheduled meeting to be held on 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 at 4:30 p.m.  

Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary 
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 BOARD MINUTES 
SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Meeting Location Date Time 

Regular District Office January 4, 2018 4:30 p.m. 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board 
of Directors was called to order with President Markey presiding at 4:30 p.m.    

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS:
Present: Will Dickinson, Jerry Mitchell, Vic Markey, John Murdock, Jim Williams 

Absent: None 
Vacant: None 

Staff: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 
Sam Rose, Superintendent 
Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 
Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

Others: None 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  President Markey led the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. CONSENT ITEMS:
1. MINUTES from the December 7, 2017 Meeting.
2. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE in the amount of $828,896.32 through December 28, 2017.
3. MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT in the total amount of $56,444,368 through December 28,

2017. 
4. RESOLUTION #18-01 WORKERS COMPENSATION COVERAGE THROUGH SDRMA FOR

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS &/OR VOLUNTEERS The excess carrier for SDRMA has
requested a new Resolution to continue covering Governing Body members and volunteers
under the Districts insurance coverage.

5. RESOLUTION #18-02 AMENDMENT#1 TO CONSTRUCTION COOPERATION & REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF ROCKLIN – LOST AVENUE FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT An amendment of project construction costs in the amount of $11,310.

Director Dickinson pulled items #1 & #5 from the consent calendar for further discussion. Director 
Mitchell made a motion to approve the remaining items on the consent calendar; a second was made 
by Director Dickinson; the motion carried 5-0.   

Director Dickinson addressed the minutes in item #1.  He stated that he realizes the need to 
summarize minutes, however he would appreciate further elaboration regarding the comments he 
had made on the Financial Impact of the MOU’s report item from the December 7, 2017 meeting.  It 
was determined that the tape would be reviewed, and the edited minutes would be brought back for 
adoption at the February 1, 2018 meeting.  

ITEM IV.2
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Director Dickinson addressed item #5 regarding the amendment to a Construction Cooperation & 
Reimbursement Agreement with the City of Rocklin for Lost Avenue Frontage Improvements.  He 
stated that he was confused, as it appears that the District had to pay extra costs for the PCWA 
design components.  DE Nielsen stated that the summary of costs for the project indicates the 
additional costs for construction and design and the apportionment that the District now owes for 
their share of the project.  Director Dickinson stated that staff should ask questions regarding 
contingencies and the demonstration of need for additional costs. He didn’t feel the report was clear 
as to what we expected to pay for the project, and how this amendment adds to the costs.  He 
suggested that staff should review project costs in their entirety as if they were the Districts own 
project.   Director Williams made a motion to approve Resolution #18-02; a second was made by 
Director Dickinson; after a roll call vote the motion carried 5-0. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
President Markey opened the Public comments. Hearing no comments, public comments were closed. 

VI. BOARD BUSINESS
1. SELECTION OF OFFICERS, APPOINTMENTS TO THE TEMPORARY ADVISORY COMMITTEES
AND DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE TO SPWA FOR 2018 

GM Niederberger introduced the Selection of Officers & Appointment report item and asked 
President Markey to dissolve the Advisory Committees from 2017.  President Markey dissolved the 
Committees and stated that he had enjoyed the year and was happy to turn it over to Director 
Mitchell.   

President Mitchell asked for nominations for a new Vice-President.  Director Dickinson nominated 
Director Williams; a second was made by Director Murdock, the motion carried 5-0. 

President Mitchell made appointments to the following Temporary Advisory Committees: 

Policy & Ordinance Committee: Vic Markey 
Jerry Mitchell 

Fee & Finance Committee: Will Dickinson 
Jim Williams 

Personnel Committee: John Murdock 
Will Dickinson 

Loomis 2 x 2 Committee: Jim Williams 
Vic Markey 

SPWA Board Representative: Jerry Mitchell 
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VII. REPORTS:
1. District General Counsel (A. Brown): General Counsel Brown provided an update on the

Dickson case in Loomis as it relates to the Loomis Diversion Project.  He explained that the Court
had granted a Motion for Possession of Easement to the District, and therefore the project can
proceed in the easement.  The Dickson’s Attorney has filed a Demur, however no further
communication has been heard.  When any substantive development occurs, it will be brought
to the Board in Closed Session.

2. General Manager (H. Niederberger): GM Niederberger had no further report.
A. ASD, FSD & TSD Reports: No additional reports by staff. Director Markey asked for an 

update on the status of the Loomis Diversion Project.  DE Nielsen provided a brief update regarding 
blasting on Dias Lane to get through rock and stated that the project is progressing well.   President 
Mitchell asked when the project would reach Brace Road. DE Nielsen explained that the schedule is 
being coordinated with all parties and as the project leave Dias Lane they will move onto Brace Road. 
At President Mitchell’s request GM Niederberger provided a report regarding discussions with the City 
of Rocklin for the Adventure Park project.  He explained that staff had met with City representatives to 
discuss the Fire Station conversion for Food Trucks and necessary Grease Interceptors which would be 
required. We understand that the City is apparently re-evaluating that component of the project.  

Director Williams asked how the review of the Restaurant FOG permits is progressing, and the 
status of reviewing Grease Interceptors for existing permits.  DE Nielsen explained that inspections of 
facilities have been going well, with local businesses being receptive to staff and the need for upkeep 
and review of their grease facilities.  He further explained that staff have been looking at performance 
based devices so that the District is prepared for exploring various alternatives when having discussions 
with both new and existing businesses. 

B. Information Items: No additional items were reported. 
3. Directors Comments:   President Mitchell indicated that the Policy & Ordinance Committee is
starting meetings in January to review the Sewer Code, and will also be attending an SPWA Board 
meeting on January 25th.  He mentioned that the Redevelopment Board he sits on with the City will be 
dissolving in July.  He has been approached by CSDA to participate in a Countywide RDA Committee, 
and is exploring the specifics related to meeting schedules etc.  Director Dickinson asked if a Fee & 
Finance Committee meeting could be held to review current investments.  GM Niederberger stated 
that an Annual Investment Strategy meeting should be held, and that would be the perfect time to 
review District investments.  

VIII. CLOSED SESSION

Public Employment - GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT   
(Per Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54957) 
The Board adjourned into closed session at 5:05 p.m. for the General Manager’s employment 
contract and compensation package. The Board reconvened into open session at 5:29 p.m. and 
directed for the employment contract to be brought back to the Board for consideration at the 
February 1, 2018 meeting.   
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IX. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m. to the next regularly scheduled meeting to be held on 
Thursday, February 1, 2018 at 4:30 p.m.  

Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary 
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Check Report
South Placer Municipal Utility District, CA By Check Number

Date Range: 12/28/2017 - 01/24/2018

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

1240 Placer County Personnel 12/28/2017 95612,822.84Regular 0.00

1586 Principal Life Insurance Company 12/28/2017 9562316.21Regular 0.00

1327 US Bank Corporate Payment 01/03/2018 956311,874.17Regular 0.00

**Void** 01/03/2018 95640.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 01/03/2018 95650.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 01/03/2018 95660.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 01/03/2018 95670.00Regular 0.00

1087 Dawson Oil Co. 01/04/2018 95682,389.03Regular 0.00

1113 Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 1423 01/04/2018 95695,468.85Regular 0.00

1145 Innovyze 01/04/2018 95701,600.00Regular 0.00

1174 KBA Docusys, Inc.  (Copier Contracts) 01/04/2018 9571441.13Regular 0.00

1183 Les Schwab Tire Center 01/04/2018 95728.00Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 01/04/2018 957380.76Regular 0.00

1221 PG&E (Current Accounts) 01/04/2018 9574323.53Regular 0.00

1554 Service Master 01/04/2018 95751,057.88Regular 0.00

1333 SPOK, Inc. 01/04/2018 957626.26Regular 0.00

1306 Superior Equipment Repair 01/04/2018 9577861.85Regular 0.00

1492 Wave Broadband - Rocklin 01/04/2018 9578209.85Regular 0.00

1139 Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates 01/04/2018 958813,540.00Regular 0.00

1021 ARC 01/11/2018 9590108.37Regular 0.00

248 AT&T   (916.663.1652) & (248.134.5438.608.80) 01/11/2018 9591158.19Regular 0.00

1026 AUS West Lockbox  (Aramark Uniforms) 01/11/2018 95921,040.00Regular 0.00

1505 California Surveying & Drafting Supply 01/11/2018 959375.08Regular 0.00

1068 City of Roseville 01/11/2018 95943,748,992.36Regular 0.00

1086 Dataprose 01/11/2018 95951,719.17Regular 0.00

1139 Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates 01/11/2018 959610,620.00Regular 0.00

1564 Jensen Landscape Services, LLC 01/11/2018 9597846.65Regular 0.00

1173 KBA Docusys  (Copies) 01/11/2018 9598276.35Regular 0.00

1188 Lucity, Inc. 01/11/2018 9599225.00Regular 0.00

1646 National Benefit Services (NBS) 01/11/2018 9600500.00Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 01/11/2018 9601621.22Regular 0.00

1306 Superior Equipment Repair 01/11/2018 9602340.50Regular 0.00

1499 TechRoe.com LLC 01/11/2018 9603900.00Regular 0.00

1325 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 01/11/2018 96043,982.50Regular 0.00

1338 Verizon Wireless 01/11/2018 96051,217.77Regular 0.00

1007 Advanced Integrated Pest 01/18/2018 9626106.00Regular 0.00

1521 Aries Industries, Inc. 01/18/2018 96272,080.01Regular 0.00

1022 AT&T  (9391035571)& (9391053973) 01/18/2018 9628293.31Regular 0.00

1073 Consolidated Communications 01/18/2018 9629519.78Regular 0.00

1080 CWEA  (Main) 01/18/2018 9630180.00Regular 0.00

1211 Noble Image, Inc. 01/18/2018 9631264.00Regular 0.00

1500 Pacific Lift and Equipment Company Inc. 01/18/2018 9632149.99Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 01/18/2018 9633449.89Regular 0.00

1244 Preferred Alliance Inc 01/18/2018 9634144.72Regular 0.00

1275 Sacramento Bee 01/18/2018 9635531.44Regular 0.00

1287 Sierra Safety 01/18/2018 9636866.17Regular 0.00

1543 Silver Driving 01/18/2018 96371,500.00Regular 0.00

1518 Sonitrol of Sacramento 01/18/2018 9638789.10Regular 0.00

1305 Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. 01/18/2018 96391,285.69Regular 0.00

1625 T & S Construction 01/18/2018 9640294,443.95Regular 0.00

1628 T & S Construction Co., Inc./ Escrow #02-700697 01/18/2018 964115,497.05Regular 0.00

1363 Travis Wilson 01/18/2018 9642324.00Regular 0.00

1080 CWEA  (Main) 01/24/2018 9645175.00Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 01/24/2018 9646337.44Regular 0.00

ITEM IV.3
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Check Report Date Range: 12/28/2017 - 01/24/2018

1/24/2018 10:29:53 AM Page 2 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1253 Recology Auburn Placer 01/24/2018 9647300.84Regular 0.00

1291 Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA)01/24/2018 96486,543.41Regular 0.00

1045 Cal Pers 457 Plan (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003167375.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031686,123.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003169685.02Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 12/29/2017 DFT0003170196.14Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 12/29/2017 DFT0003171417.62Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003172147.25Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003173261.23Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003174381.21Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031753,265.47Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031764,765.57Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT000317786.84Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003178104.42Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003179442.12Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003180798.51Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031811,491.93Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031821,648.65Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031831,723.32Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT000318410,374.94Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT00031853,203.56Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003186664.02Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT00031872,614.80Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT00031889,392.26Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003192-310.75Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT0003193-324.82Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT0003194-254.88Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT000319531.79Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT000319746.61Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 12/29/2017 DFT00032010.36Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 12/29/2017 DFT00032020.93Bank Draft 0.00

1015 American Fidelity Assurance 12/28/2017 DFT0003242999.24Bank Draft 0.00

1230 Pers (EFT) 12/28/2017 DFT000324341,191.61Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 12/28/2017 DFT0003244225.00Bank Draft 0.00

1045 Cal Pers 457 Plan (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003265375.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032666,123.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003267685.02Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 01/12/2018 DFT0003268196.14Bank Draft 0.00

1580 TASC 01/12/2018 DFT0003269330.75Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003270147.25Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003271261.23Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003272381.21Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032733,265.46Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032744,765.56Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT000327586.84Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003276104.42Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003277442.12Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003278798.51Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032791,491.93Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032801,652.45Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032811,727.29Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT000328211,595.14Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00032833,146.97Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT0003284812.79Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT00032852,711.80Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT00032869,289.58Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 12/29/2017 DFT0003297254.88Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 12/29/2017 DFT000329910.42Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT00033356.06Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00033363.24Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/12/2018 DFT00033370.45Bank Draft 0.00
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Check Report Date Range: 12/28/2017 - 01/24/2018

1/24/2018 10:29:53 AM Page 3 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT00033381.42Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/12/2018 DFT00033397.34Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/18/2018 DFT000334077.06Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/18/2018 DFT00033416.79Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 01/18/2018 DFT00033425.59Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/18/2018 DFT000334318.02Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 01/18/2018 DFT000334438.64Bank Draft 0.00

1645 Aspire Retirement Solutions 12/29/2017 DFT00033459,321.52Bank Draft 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

52

0

4

67

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

123 0.00

Payment

4,139,425.31

0.00

0.00

150,909.86

0.00

4,290,335.17

Payable
Count

78

0

0

67

0

145
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Check Report Date Range: 12/28/2017 - 01/24/2018

Page 4 of 41/24/2018 10:29:53 AM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

52

0

4

67

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

123 0.00

4,139,425.31

0.00

0.00

150,909.86

0.00

4,290,335.17

78

0

0

67

0

145

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

100 GENERAL FUND 103,493.8412/2017

100 GENERAL FUND 4,186,841.331/2018

4,290,335.17
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Account Number Name Date Type  Amount Reference Packet

102-0000750-01 Velasco, Barbara J 1/4/2018 Refund 6.87$          Check #: 9579 UBPKT04481

102-0006703-01 Meza, Troy 1/4/2018 Refund 826.50$     Check #: 9580 UBPKT04481

102-0012165-02 Sigl, Aaron 1/4/2018 Refund 5.28$          Check #: 9581 UBPKT04481

102-0012434-01 Rounsavall, Stacey 1/4/2018 Refund 99.83$       Check #: 9582 UBPKT04481

103-0004150-02 Sliwa, Cammy 1/4/2018 Refund 296.93$     Check #: 9583 UBPKT04481

103-0004867-01 Gephart, Karin 1/4/2018 Refund 6.20$          Check #: 9584 UBPKT04481

106-0013331-01 Grygo, James 1/4/2018 Refund 10.58$       Check #: 9585 UBPKT04481

106-0015842-01 Miller, Larry W 1/4/2018 Refund 480.00$     Check #: 9586 UBPKT04481

112-1028138-00 Tim Lewis Communities 1/4/2018 Refund 25.09$       Check #: 9587 UBPKT04481

106-0015842-01 Miller, Larry W 1/9/2018 Refund 480.00$     Check #: 9589 UBPKT04528

101-0006323-03 Milner, Ann 1/18/2018 Refund 97.83$       Check #: 9607 UBPKT04551

102-0001384-01 Odom, Lloyd 1/18/2018 Refund 240.00$     Check #: 9608 UBPKT04551

102-0008800-01 Jodar, Paul 1/18/2018 Refund 99.09$       Check #: 9609 UBPKT04551

102-0010927-02 McGrath, Thomas 1/18/2018 Refund 7.24$          Check #: 9610 UBPKT04551

102-0011846-03 Duncan, Grant and Laura 1/18/2018 Refund 14.54$       Check #: 9611 UBPKT04551

103-0003726-01 Vahid, Farokh 1/18/2018 Refund 38.24$       Check #: 9612 UBPKT04551

103-0003800-01 Navarro, Alfonso J 1/18/2018 Refund 59.93$       Check #: 9613 UBPKT04551

103-0004855-01 H M PINTO 1/18/2018 Refund 93.00$       Check #: 9614 UBPKT04551

103-0008877-01 Sutherland, Stephanie 1/18/2018 Refund 30.99$       Check #: 9615 UBPKT04551

103-0014368-01 Lewis, Dianna 1/18/2018 Refund 5.15$    Check #: 9616 UBPKT04551

106-0014138-03 Davis, Jason and Traci 1/18/2018 Refund 7.19$    Check #: 9617 UBPKT04551

106-0017116-01 Shaw, Brad 1/18/2018 Refund 7.50$    Check #: 9618 UBPKT04551

112-1020906-03 Ward, Richard and Kelly 1/18/2018 Refund 97.50$       Check #: 9619 UBPKT04551

112-1022832-02 Delgado, Robert 1/18/2018 Refund 93.05$       Check #: 9620 UBPKT04551

112-1026960-01 Kossler, Mauricio and Kathleen1/18/2018 Refund 90.44$       Check #: 9621 UBPKT04551

112-1027718-00 CalAtlantic Group Inc. 1/18/2018 Refund 22.43$       Check #: 9622 UBPKT04551

112-1027734-00 Taylor Morrison of California LLC1/18/2018 Refund 143.42$     Check #: 9623 UBPKT04551

112-1027921-00 Tim Lewis Communities 1/18/2018 Refund 88.86$       Check #: 9624 UBPKT04551

112-1027925-00 Garnet Creek Homes LLC 1/18/2018 Refund 7.24$          Check #: 9625 UBPKT04551

102-0012155-01 Segal, Susan 1/24/2018 Refund 62.85$       Check #: 9643 UBPKT04650

106-0015066-02 HUGO ORTIZ 1/24/2018 Refund 180.00$     Check #: 9644 UBPKT04650

TOTAL REFUNDS 3,723.77$ 
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Fund 100 Fund 300 Fund 400 

General CIP & Expansion 
Capital Replacement 

& Rehabilitation 

Allocation to Fund Type 22.10% 39.34% 38.56%

CALTRUST
Annual Rate of 

Return

Balance at inception  $            19,000,000  $ 4,199,789  $            7,474,188  $ 7,326,023 
Cumulative Income 2.30%  $ 436,056  $ 96,386  $ 171,535  $ 168,135 

Cumulative Unrealized Gain/Loss -1.16%  $ (219,506)  $ (48,520)  $ (86,349)  $ (84,637)

 Cumulative Realized Gain/Loss 0.00%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

Cumulative Balance at beginning of month  $            19,216,550  $ 4,247,655  $            7,559,374  $ 7,409,520 

Current month income 0.12%  $ 23,357  $ 5,163  $ 9,188  $ 9,006 
Current month Unrealized Gain/Loss -0.18%  $ (34,358)  $ (7,594)  $ (13,516)  $ (13,248)

Current month Realized Gain/Loss 0.00%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

TOTALS  $            19,205,549  $ 4,245,224  $            7,555,046  $ 7,405,279 

WELLS FARGO - Fixed Income Securities
Actual Rate of 

Return

Balance at inception  $            18,000,000  $ 3,978,747  $            7,080,810  $ 6,940,443 
Transfers  $ 4,000,000  $ 884,166  $            1,573,513  $ 1,542,321 

Cumulative Income 2.32%  $ 418,367  $ 92,477  $ 164,577  $ 161,314 
Cumulative Unrealized Gain/Loss -2.00%  $ (359,715)  $ (79,512)  $             (141,504)  $ (138,699)

 Cumulative Realized Gain/Loss 0.00%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

Cumulative Balance at beginning of month  $            22,058,652  $ 4,875,878  $            8,677,395  $ 8,505,379 

Current month income 0.06%  $ 13,788  $ 3,048  $ 5,424  $ 5,316 
Current month Unrealized Gain/Loss -0.22%  $ (48,113)  $ (10,635)  $ (18,926)  $ (18,551)

Current month Realized Gain/Loss 0.00%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

Market Average/Yield to Worst 1.66%

TOTALS  $            22,024,328  $ 4,868,291  $            8,663,893  $ 8,492,144 

LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund)
Annual Rate of 

Return

Balance  $ 5,055,882  $ 1,117,560  $            1,988,874  $ 1,949,448 

Quarterly Interest  1.20%  $ 15,349  $ 3,393  $ 6,038  $ 5,918 

TOTALS  $ 5,071,231  $ 1,120,953  $            1,994,912  $ 1,955,366 

PLACER COUNTY TREASURY
Annual Rate of 

Return

Balance  $ 5,126,054  $ 1,133,071  $            2,016,478  $ 1,976,505 

Monthly Interest 1.32%  $ 5,755  $ 1,272  $ 2,264  $ 2,219 

TOTALS  $ 5,131,808  $ 1,134,343  $            2,018,742  $ 1,978,724 

SUB-TOTALS  $            51,432,917  $            11,368,810  $          20,232,594  $ 19,831,513 

CHECKING ACCOUNT BALANCE  $ 2,996,480  $ 662,347  $            1,178,750  $ 1,155,383 
GRAND TOTALS  $            54,429,397  $            12,031,157  $          21,411,344  $ 20,986,896 

SPMUD BOARD INVESTMENT REPORT

MEETING DATE: 02/01/18

INVESTMENT TOTAL FUNDS 

Investments are in compliance with Policy# 3120 - Investment Policy, and have the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements.

*Please note information presented is current at print time, and may be delayed by approximately 30 days.

ITEM IV.4
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Cc: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Resolution 18-03 – General Manager’s Authorization Related to the 

SPMUD – Service Lateral CIPP Liner and Seal Program 2018 Contract 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 

Overview 

The current budget has a line item for System Rehabilitation and included in the program is the 

installation of Cured-In-Place Pipe liners for service lateral pipes and Lateral Connection Seals.  

Staff has identified 58 lower laterals in need of the CIPP liner, as well as the Lateral Connection 

Seal.  In addition, 45 lateral connection seals will be installed on pipes that have been previously 

lined. 

The District issued an invitation to bid on December 21, 2017 and held a non-mandatory Pre-Bid 

meeting on January 4, 2018 – two contractors were represented at this meeting.  Sealed bids were 

due by January 16, 2018.  NorCal Pipeline Services was the only bidder.  Staff’s review found the 

bid from NorCal Pipeline Services was in compliance with the requirements of the contract 

documents and the bid amount is below the engineer’s estimate. NorCal Pipeline Services has 

successfully completed work for the District in the past.  Time is of the essence and staff would 

like to move forward with this project at this time. 

Bidder Amount 

NorCal Pipeline Services 347,859 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

• Adopt Resolution 18-03 to authorize the General Manager to:

o Award the attached contract for services to NorCal Pipeline Services

o File the Notice of Completion upon the District approval of the project

o Approve Change Orders totaling up to 10% of the Contract amount of $347,859.00.

Strategic Plan Goal 

This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 3.1: Plan all projects to ensure adherence to District standards and ordinances. 

Goal 3.3: Develop and Implement a Tactical Asset Management program 
ITEM IV.5
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Fiscal Impact 

$382,265 (includes 10% contingency for Change Orders.)  It is expected that this work will result 

in extended maintenance intervals and reduced level of effort for the laterals rehabilitated.  The 

costs for this rehabilitation project will be paid for out of Fund 400. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 18-03 – General Manager’s Authorization Related to the SPMUD – Service

Lateral CIPP Liner and Seal Program 2018 Contract

2. Contract for Services – SPMUD – Service Lateral CIPP Liner and Seal Program 2018

Contract
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-03 

SPMUD – SERVICE LATERAL CIPP LINER AND SEAL PROGRAM 2018 CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, South Placer Municipal Utility District, hereinafter called SPMUD, owns and 

operates the sewer facilities within the Town of Loomis, City of Rocklin, and the Communities of 

Penryn, Newcastle and a portion of Granite Bay, and 

WHEREAS, SPMUD competitively bid the work to be performed as required in the Public 

Contract Code, and 

WHEREAS, SPMUD reviewed the bids received and found the bid by NorCal Pipeline 

Services to be the lowest responsive bidder, and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board of 

Directors authorizes the General Manager to:  

1. Award the contract to NorCal Pipeline Services in the amount of $347,859.00 to

perform the SPMUD – Service Lateral CIPP Liner and Seal Program 2018 work;

2. Approve Change Orders totaling up to 10% of the Contract Amount; and

3. File the Notice of Completion upon approval of the project by SPMUD.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board 

of Directors at Rocklin, CA this 1st day of February 2018. 

Signed: 

Gerald P. Mitchell, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 
Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary  
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Cc: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Resolution 18-04 – General Manager’s Authorization Related to the 

SPMUD – Manhole Liner Program 2018 Contract 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 

Overview 

The current budget has a line item for System Rehabilitation and included in the program is the 

installation of calcium aluminate manhole liners.  Staff has identified 39 manholes, totaling 300 

vertical feet, in need of rehabilitation 

The District issued an invitation to bid on December 21, 2017 and held a non-mandatory Pre-Bid 

meeting on January 4, 2018.  Sealed bids were due by January 16, 2018.  SoCal Pacific 

Construction Corp, dba National Coating & Lining Co. was the apparent low bidder.  Staff’s 

review found the bid from SoCal Pacific Construction Corp, dba National Coating & Lining Co. 

was in compliance with the requirements of the contract documents and the bid amount is below 

the engineer’s estimate.  The bid amount was within budget for this project. 

Bidder Amount 

National Coating & Lining Co. $89,800 

NorCal Pipeline Services 162,400 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

• Adopt Resolution 18-04 to authorize the General Manager to:

o Award the attached contract for services to SoCal Pacific Construction Corp, dba

National Coating & Lining Co.

o File the Notice of Completion upon the District approval of the project

o Approve Change Orders totaling up to 10% of the Contract Amount $89,800.00.

Strategic Plan Goal 

This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 3.1: Plan all projects to ensure adherence to District standards and ordinances. 

Goal 3.3: Develop and Implement a Tactical Asset Management program 

ITEM IV.6
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Fiscal Impact 

$98,780.00, including 10% contingency for Change Orders.  It is expected that this work will result 

in extended maintenance intervals and reduced level of effort for the manholes rehabilitated.  The 

costs for this rehabilitation project will be paid for out of Fund 400. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 18-04 – General Manager’s Authorization Related to the SPMUD – Manhole

Liner Program 2018 Contract

2. Contract for Services – SPMUD – Manhole Liner Program 2018
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-04 

SPMUD – MANHOLE LINER PROGRAM 2018 CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, South Placer Municipal Utility District, hereinafter called SPMUD, owns and 

operates the sewer facilities within the Town of Loomis, City of Rocklin and Community of 

Newcastle, and 

WHEREAS, SPMUD competitively bid the work to be performed as required in the Public 

Contract Code, and 

WHEREAS, SPMUD reviewed the bids received and found the bid by SoCal Pacific 

Construction Corp, dba National Coating & Lining Co. to be the lowest responsive bidder, and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board of 

Directors authorizes the General Manager to: 

1. Award the contract to SoCal Pacific Construction Corp, dba National Coating & Lining

Co.  in the amount of $89,800.00 to perform the SPMUD – Manhole Liner Program

2018 work:

2. Approve Change Orders totaling up to 10% of the Contract Amount; and

3. File the Notice of Completion upon approval of the project by SPMUD.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board 

of Directors at Rocklin, CA this 1st day of February 2018. 

Signed: 

Gerald P. Mitchell, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 
Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary  
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Cc: Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

Subject: Resolution 18-05, General Manager Employment Agreement 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 

Overview 

On November 6, 2014, the Board President, on behalf of the Board of Directors executed an 

employment agreement with the current General Manager. The “Term of Employment” as defined in 

the employment agreement ran from December 2, 2014 and terminated on December 1, 2017. On 

November 5, 2017, the Board voted to extend the General Manager’s employment agreement to March 

1, 2018, to allow time to complete negotiations. In consideration of the employment agreement and 

Board Policy 4042 Board – General Manager Relationship and Responsibilities, also on November 5, 

2017, the Board conducted an evaluation of the performance of the General Manager. In recognition 

of the General Manager’s performance, the Personnel Advisory Committee is recommending that the 

General Manager’s Employment Agreement, as attached, be renewed, retroactive to December 1, 2017 

and terminating on December 1, 2020.  

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 18-05, authorizing the Board President to sign 

the General Manager’s employment agreement.  

Strategic Plan Goals 

Goal 6.2: Develop and implement competitive and Incentive-based Compensation programs 

Related District Ordinances or Policies 

Policy 4042- Board – General Manager Relationship and Responsibilities. 

Fiscal Impact 

This action was provided for in the 5-Year Financial Plan and Cost of Service Study and was included 

in the Fiscal Year 2017/18 Budget 

Attachments: 

Resolution 18-05 

GM Employment Agreement 

ITEM IV.7
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-05 

GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, In accordance with Section11926 of the California Municipal Utility District 

Act (MUD Act), the Board of Directors shall appoint and fix the salary of the General Manager 

whose powers are described in Section 11937 of said MUD Act; and 

WHEREAS, On November 6, 2014, the Board President, on behalf of the Board of 

Directors executed an employment agreement with the current General Manager with a “Term 

of Employment” as defined in the employment agreement commencing on December 2, 2014 

and terminating on December 1, 2017: and 

WHEREAS, On November 5, 2017, the Board of Director voted to extend the General 

Manager’s employment agreement to March 1, 2018, to allow time to complete negotiations 

for the renewal of the employment agreement; and 

WHEREAS, also on November 5, 2017, in accordance with Section 3.3 of the 

employment agreement and Board Policy 4042, Board – General Manager Relationship and 

Responsibilities, the Board conducted an evaluation of the performance of the General 

Manager; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the General Manager’s performance, the District’s 

Personnel Advisory Committee is recommending that the General Manager’s employment 

agreement be renewed retroactive to December 1, 2017 and terminating on December 1, 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the South Placer 

Municipal Utility District to authorize the Board President to execute said General Manager’s 

employment agreement. 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility 

District Board of Directors at Rocklin, CA this 1st Day of February 2018. 

Signed: __________________________________________ 
Gerald P. Mitchell, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest: _________________________________ 
Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary  
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Employment Agreement for General Manager 

South Placer Municipal Utility District (hereinafter referred to as "District"), a 

municipal utility district formed and existing under the laws of the State of California 

pursuant to section 11501 et seq. of the Public Utilities Code, and Herb Niederberger 

(hereinafter referred to as "Employee" or "General Manager"), in consideration of the 

mutual promises made herein below, enter into this Employment Agreement for General 

Manager (the “Agreement”) as follows: 

Article I. Term of Employment 

Section 1.1 District hereby employs Employee and Employee hereby accepts 

employment with District for a period of three (3) years, commencing on December 1, 

2017 and terminating on December 1, 2020. As used herein, the phrase "employment 

term" refers to the entire period of employment of Employee by District hereunder, 

whether for the periods provided above, or whether terminated earlier as hereinafter 

provided or extended by mutual Agreement between District and Employee. 

Section l.2 This Agreement may be extended by mutual consent of District and Employee 

for additional periods beyond the termination date of this Agreement provided, however, 

that any action by District to extend or modify this Agreement must be in writing and 

signed by District and Employee, and shall require the affirmative vote of not less than 

three members of the Board of Directors of District, in open session, and such action shall 

be reflected in the minutes of such meeting. 

Section 1.3 The effective date of this Agreement shall be retroactive to December 1, 2017. 

Article II. Duties and Obligations of Employee 

Section 2.1 Employee shall serve as General Manager of the District and shall perform 

such duties and responsibilities specified under chapters 3 and 4 of the Municipal Utility 

District Act (sections 11801 - 12167 of the Public Utilities Code), as well as such duties 

and responsibilities set forth in existing and future resolutions of the Board of Directors of 

District describing Employee's management authority and responsibility, and establishing 

practices and procedures regarding District personnel, and such other duties  as may be 

required  from time to time by the Board of Directors of District. 

Section 2.2 Employee shall perform all services, acts or things necessary or advisable to 

manage and conduct the business of District. Employee shall devote his productive time, 

ability and attention to the business of District during the term of this Agreement. During 

the term of this Agreement, Employee shall not engage in any other businesses or pursuits, 

accept or perform work of a nature that conflicts or competes in any way with the business 

or services of District.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, Employee shall not, 

whether directly or indirectly, render any services of a commercial or professional nature 
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to any other person or organization, whether for compensation or otherwise, without the 

prior written consent of District's Board of Directors. However, the expenditure of 

reasonable amounts of time for educational, charitable or professional activities shall not 

be deemed a breach of this Agreement if those activities do not materially interfere with 

the services required under this Agreement. 

Section 2.3 The Employee shall be on a “9-80” work schedule as defined in section 2.5 of 

the District’s Civil Service System Employee Manual. Unless on defined leave or out of 

the District Service Area, the Employee shall be expected to be available to respond to 

District needs at all reasonable times.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of 

Directors reserves the right in its sole discretion to require Employee to work a standard 

work week schedule of five (5) eight (8) hour days.  Nothing contained herein shall be 

construed to alter Employee’s classification as an exempt employee. 

Article III. Obligations of District 

Section 3.1 District shall provide Employee with the compensation, benefits and expense 

reimbursements as set forth below in this Agreement. District shall also provide 

Employee with a private office, staff support, office equipment, supplies and other 

facilities and services suitable to Employee's position and adequate for the performance 

of his duties. 

Section 3.2 District shall indemnify Employee for all loss sustained by Employee in direct 

consequence of the discharge of his duties on District's behalf to the fullest extent permitted 

under California law. 

Section 3.3 District shall conduct a periodic performance evaluation of Employee, which 

shall be conducted in closed session and which will involve District's assessment of the 

achievement of tasks and goals set forth by Employee at the commencement of the term of 

this Agreement. 

Article IV. Compensation of Employee 

Section 4.1 Annual Salary. As compensation for the services to be performed hereunder, 

Employee shall receive a salary at a rate $183,810 per year.  On July 1, 2018, 2019 and 

2020, there will be a salary adjustment consistent with the US Department of Labor, Bureau 

of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical 

Workers (CPI-W) for West – A. The salary adjustment will be no less than 2% and no more 

than 4% for any given year.  Pay periods and practices are set forth in the District's 

Employee Manual. 

Section 4.2 Retirement Plan. Employee shall be entitled to participate in PERS at the Tier 

II rate of 2% at 55%.  Subject to the annual assessment of the Employee’s achievement of 

set goals and objectives, the District may, in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, 

contribute up to 5% of the Employee’s annual salary into an IRS 401 a) Defined 

Contribution supplemental retirement plan. Upon execution of this employee Agreement, 

Page 44 of 134



3 

the District will immediately fund Employee’s 401 a) retirement plan with 2.5% of the 

Employee’s annual salary. 

Section 4.3 Deferred Compensation (457 Plan). District will match Employee's 

contribution to the District's deferred compensation plan up to $500 per pay period. 

Section 4.4 Car and Cell Phone Allowance. District shall provide Employee a 

car/transportation allowance of up to $150 per pay period. In lieu of a District furnished 

cell phone, the Employee may furnish an Employee owned cell phone for District use. 

The District shall reimburse the Employee $30.00 per pay period towards the cost of 

the Employee provided cell phone. Unless on defined leave or out of the District 

Service Area, Employee shall be available by cell phone to respond to District needs.  

Employee understands that by using his own cell phone for District purposes, he may 

be required to disclose data (such as text messages or emails) pursuant to a Public 

Records Act request or judicial process, which may include the disclosure of 

information, communications or data of a personal nature. 

Section 4.5 Benefits. Employee shall be entitled to medical and dental insurance as 

provided to all management employees subject to the terms and conditions of the 

District's Civil Service System Employee Manual.  

Section 4.6 Vacation, Holidays and Sick Leave.  In lieu of paid administrative leave to 

which Employee may otherwise be or have been entitled during his employment with the 

District, whether or not accrued or taken, Employee shall be entitled to accrue two hundred 

(200) hours of paid vacation each calendar year. The rate of accrual and total maximum 

accrual of vacation and sick leave, District paid holidays and eligibility for cash out, shall 

be calculated at the accrual rate for Management Employees, in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of the District's Civil Service System Employee Manual.  Employee shall 

be eligible for all District paid holidays as provided in the District’s Civil Service System 

Employee Manual. 

Section 4.7 Reimbursement. In accordance with adopted District policies, the District 

shall promptly reimburse Employee for all reasonable expenses incurred by Employee 

in connection with the business of the District. Each such expenditure shall be 

reimbursable only if Employee furnishes to District adequate records and documentary 

evidence to substantiate the expenditure. 

Section 4.8 Professional Education and Training, Subject to the approval of the Board 

of Directors, District shall budget and pay for the professional education, conferences, 

training, dues and subscriptions that are deemed necessary for Employee's professional 

growth and advancement or are in the best interests of the District. The Board of 

Directors will be notified in advance of any travel or training that requires overnight 

lodging. Expenses related to travel requiring overnight stays shall be reimbursed in 

accordance with adopted District policies. Out-of-state overnight travel and lodging 

shall require the advance approval of the Board of Directors. 

Page 45 of 134



4  

Section 4.9 Life Insurance. The District shall furnish a $250,000 term life insurance policy 

for Employee, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors regarding the cost and 

issuing insurance company. 

 

Article V. Termination of   Employment 

 

Section 5.1 Employee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of District. 

District shall have the right to terminate the employment of Employee with or without 

cause.  If District terminates without cause, it shall provide Employee at least ninety days' 

notice thereof. If District terminates Employee's employment for "cause" (as defined 

below), it may do so immediately without notice. Any decision by District to terminate 

Employee's employment prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement shall 

require the affirmative vote of not less than three members of the Board of Directors 

of District.  

 

Section 5.2 Termination for Cause. District reserves the right to terminate this 

Agreement if Employee willfully breaches or habitually neglects the duties which he is 

required to perform under the terms of this Agreement; or commits such acts of 

dishonesty, fraud, misrepresentation, or other acts of moral turpitude as would prevent 

the effective performance of his duties. As used herein, the term "cause" shall involve any 

conduct or activity in which Employee: 

 

(a) Misappropriates any funds or property of District; 

 

(b) Attempts to obtain any personal profit from any transaction in which 

Employee has an interest which is adverse to the interests of District. The 

Board of Directors of District may waive this subparagraph (b) on a case­ by-

case basis, provided, however, that such waiver shall require the written 

authorization of the Board following a vote in open session; 

 

(c) Acts in bad faith and to the detriment of the District,  

 

(d) Refuses or fails to act in accordance with any legal requirement or specific 

direction or order of a majority of the Board of Directors, provided such 

direction is lawful; 

 

(e) Exhibits in regard to his employment unfitness or unavailability for 

service, unsatisfactory performance, misconduct, dishonesty, habitual 

neglect, or incompetence; 

 

(f) Is involved in crime involving dishonesty, breach of trust, or public 

conduct reflecting negatively on the District (no pending criminal 

prosecution need be in effect for termination due to fraud, embezzlement 

or public conduct reflecting negatively on the District; rather the Board of 

Directors must only have a good faith belief based upon a good faith 

investigation); 
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(g) Recklessly creates physical or emotional harm to any person; or  

 

(h) Breaches any material term or provision of this Agreement. 

 

Section 5.3 In the event District terminates this Agreement for cause as set forth in this 

section, District shall, if demanded by Employee, give a written statement of the reasons 

alleged for his removal without prejudice to any other remedy to which District may be 

entitled either at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. This provision is subject to Public 

Utilities Code Section 11929. 

 

Section 5.4 In the event District terminates Employee for cause as set forth herein, 

District's obligation under this Agreement to make any further payments to Employee 

shall cease and terminate on the effective date of Employee's termination. 

 

Section 5.5 Termination Without Cause. In the event District elects to terminate the 

employment of Employee without cause as defined herein, in accordance with 

Government Code Sections 53260 et seq., Employee shall be entitled to severance in an 

amount equal to six (6) months of Employee's then base monthly salary or an amount equal 

to his then base monthly salary multiplied by the number of months remaining on the 

unexpired term of this Agreement, whichever is less.  Employee shall be entitled to his 

severance pay either in a lump sum or, if he elects, in a reasonable number of installments. 

 

Termination by Employee. In the event Employee elects to terminate this Agreement 

prior to the expiration of its term, Employee shall continue to be paid his salary and 

benefits through the last day of employment. Employee shall provide District a 

minimum thirty (30) days’ written notice prior to his expected date of termination. 

 

Section 5.6 Exercise of Rights By District.  All rights of District under this Agreement 

shall be vested in the Board of Directors of District and shall only be exercised by a 

vote of a majority (but not less than 3) of the entire Board. 

 

Article VI. General Provisions 

 

Section 6. l Arbitration. Employee and District agree to arbitrate any and all 

disputes, claims, or controversies (“claims”) they may have against each other, including 

their current and former agents, officers, directors, or employees, which arise from the 

employment relationship between Employee and District or the termination thereof.  

Claims include, but are not limited to:  claims for breach of any term of this Agreement, 

claims of employment discrimination and harassment under Title VII of the Civil Rights 

Act, as amended; the California Fair Employment & Housing Act; the Age Discrimination 

in Employment Act, as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act; 42 U.S.C. section 

1981; the Employment Retirement Income Security Act; the California Labor Code, 

including any claims brought by the Employee related to wages; breach of employment 

contract or the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; wrongful discharge; or 

tortious conduct (whether intentional or negligent) including defamation, 
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misrepresentation, fraud, infliction of emotional distress, but excluding claims for workers’ 

compensation benefits to remedy work-related injury or illness.  Employee and District 

understand and agree that they are waiving their right to bring such claims to court, 

including the right to a jury trial.  

 

 The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to California Code of Civil 

Procedure section 1282 et seq., as may be later amended. The arbitrator shall be 

appointed pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1281.6, as may later be 

amended. The arbitration shall take place in Placer County, California, unless 

otherwise agreed to in writing by District and Employee. 

The arbitrator will issue a detailed written decision and award, resolving the 

dispute.  The arbitrator’s written opinion and award shall decide all issues submitted and 

set forth the legal principle(s) supporting each part of the opinion. 

The decision or award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties.  

The arbitrator shall have the power to award any type of legal or equitable relief that would 

be available in a court of competent jurisdiction including, but not limited to attorneys’ 

fees and punitive damages when such damages and fees are available under the applicable 

statute and/or judicial authority.  Any arbitral award may be entered as a judgment or order 

in any court of competent jurisdiction.  Employee and District agree that any relief or 

recovery to which they are entitled arising out of the employment relationship or cessation 

thereof shall be limited to that awarded by the arbitrator.   

Nothing in this Agreement precludes Employee from filing a charge or from 

participating in an administrative investigation of a charge before any appropriate 

government agency.  However, Employee understands and agrees that Employee cannot 

obtain any monetary relief or recovery from such a proceeding.   

Employee and District agree to file any petition for arbitration within the time limit 

established by the applicable statute of limitations for the asserted claims or within one 

year of the conduct that forms the basis of the claim if no statutory limitation is applicable.  

Failure to file a petition for arbitration within the prescribed time period shall result in a 

waiver of said claims. 

A court or other entity construing this Agreement should administer, modify, or 

interpret it to the extent and such manner as to render it enforceable.  If, for any reason, 

this Agreement is declared unenforceable and cannot be administered, interpreted, or 

modified to be enforceable, Employee and District agree to waive any right they may have 

to a jury trial with respect to any dispute or claim relating to employment, termination from 

employment, or any terms and conditions of employment with the District. 

BY INITIALING BELOW, EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES, AGREES AND 

UNDERSTANDS THAT BY ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT, HE IS WAIVING 

ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY.   

Employee Initials:  ___________. 
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Section 6.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and replaces any and all 

other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to 

the employment of Employee by District, including the original Agreement between 

Employee and District and all amendments thereto, and contains all of the covenants 

and Agreements between the parties with respect to that employment and in any 

manner whatsoever.  Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no 

representations, inducements, promises or Agreements, orally or otherwise, have been 

made by any party or anyone acting on behalf of any party which are not embodied 

herein, and that no other Agreement, statement or promise or understanding not 

contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party. Unless 

specifically addressed by this Agreement, the Employee shall be bound by the terms 

and conditions of the District's Civil Service System Employee Manual.  In the event 

of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the District’s Civil Service 

System Employee Manual, this Agreement shall prevail. 

 

Section 6.3 Modification. Any modification of this Agreement will be effective 

only if it is in writing and signed by the party to be charged. No modification to 

this Agreement shall be valid unless said modification is approved by the 

affirmative vote of not less than three members of the Board of Directors of District 

in public session, which action shall be reflected in the minutes of such meeting 

approving the modification. 

 

Section 6.4 No Waiver. The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with 

any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall 

not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condition nor shall any waiver or 

relinquishment of any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or 

relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other times. 

 

Section 6.5 If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall 

nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 
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Section 6.6 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California. 

 

Executed on this __day of __________, 2018 at Rocklin, California. 

 

SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

 

 

By________________________________ 

Title: PRESIDENT 

 

Attest: 

 

 

By________________________________ 

Title: SECRETARY 

 

 

Approved as to form 

 

 

By________________________________ 

Title: GENERAL COUNSEL 

 

 

Employee 

 

 

By_______________________________ 

HERB NIEDERBERGER 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Cc: Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

Subject: Fiscal Year 16/17 Audit Report 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 

Overview  

The independent Audit of the District’s Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2017 was completed by the certified public accounting firm Mann, Urrutia & Nelson LLP. 

The Districts financial statements provide information about the finances of the District. The 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) starts the financial section of the report and 

serves as an executive summary to the statements. As a part of the annual audit, the auditors are 

required to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2017 are free from material misstatement.  

The report concludes that upon audit, there is a reasonable basis for an unqualified opinion and 

that the District’s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP (unqualified 

opinion is defined as appropriately presented financial records). The Auditors report states that 

there are no material weaknesses, no compliance exceptions and no significant deficiencies that 

are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

The Auditor did note in their findings several recommendations for strengthening internal 

controls in addition to utilizing the services of a Certified Public Accountant to assist with bank 

reconciliation and monthly general ledger review.  The Department have instituted the Auditors 

recommendations.  

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that: 

1. The Board of Directors accept the FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statements.

Strategic Plan Goals 

This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.3: Build Business efficiencies 

Goal 2.2: Maintain compliance with pertinent regulations 

Goal 2.4: Maintain transparency with all District activities 

ITEM VI.1
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Related District Ordinances and Policies 

Policy # 4048 – District General Counsel & Auditor 

Policy # 3115 – Fixed Asset Capitalization & Accounting Control 

Fiscal Impact 

The Audit report concludes that District funds are being spent appropriately and as intended by 

the Board. 

Attachment:  FY 16/17 Audited Financial Statements 
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MANN • URRUTIA • NELSON CPAs & ASSOCIATES, LLP 
GLENDALE • ROSEVILLE • SACRAMENTO • SOUTH LAKE TA HOE • KA UA I, HAWAII 

January 4, 2018 

To the Board of Directors 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of South Placer Municipal Utility 
District for the year June 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you 
dated April17, 2017. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 
audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies 
used by South Placer Municipal Utility District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies 
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into 
by South Placer Municipal Utility District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting 
the District's financial statements was were' 

Management's estimate of the net pension liability is based on actuarial valuations. We evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability in determining that it is reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of depreciation is based on useful life. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits is based on actuarial valuations. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the other post-employment benefits in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Attachment A summarizes 
uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. The material misstatements in Attachment B 
were detected as a result of audit procedures and were corrected by management. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

SACRAMENTO OFFICE . 25 15 V ENTURE OAKS WAY, SUITE 135 • SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 • 0 . 9 16.929.0540 . F. 916.929.054 1 
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Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated 
January 4, 2018. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to 
obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to South 
Placer Municipal Utility District's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed 
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts . To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as South Placer Municipal Utility District's auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), schedule of funding progress for 
OPEB, schedule of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of contributions to the cost­
sharing defined benefit pension which are requ ired supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial 
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on supplementary information which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With 
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form , content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary 
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on Introductory Section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, and the Statistical 
Section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Directors and management of the South Placer 
Municipal Utility District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Mann, Urrutia, Nelson, CPAs & Associate , LLP 
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Description Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Expenses

Current Year Differences

To record soft error for unrecorded liabilities 20,367$   20,367$   

To true-up bank reconciliation account balance to 

the GL account balance 7,965$   (7,965)$   

To adjust the auto balance cash account 15,284$   (15,284)$      

Total Income Statement Effect -$   (23,249)$      

Balance Sheet Effect 43,616$   20,367$   -$   

Effect - Increase (Decrease)

Attachment A

SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF PASSED AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS

June 30, 2017
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Description Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Expenses

Current Year Differences

To roll prior year transfers and unrealized 

gains/losses into retained earnings 193,106$    (14,702,157)$    (14,509,051)$    

Entry to book effect of prior auditor adjustments 

not recorded (188,700)$   91,307$    90,030$   (7,363)$    

To record unrecorded liability 214,120$   214,120$   

Total Income Statement Effect (14,612,127)$    (14,516,414)$    

Balance Sheet Effect 214,120$   25,420$   284,413$    

 Attachment B

Effect - Increase (Decrease)

SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS

June 30, 2017
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Mann Urrutia Nelson, CPAs and Associates, LLP 
2515 Venture Oaks Way, Ste 135 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
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MANN • URRUTIA • NELSON CPAs & ASSOCIATES , LLP 
G LEN DA LE • RO SE VI LL E • SAC RAM EN TO • SO UTH LA KE TAH OE • KAUA I , H AWA II 

To Board of Directors 
South Placer Municipal Utility District 
Rocklin , California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of South Placer 
Municipal Utility District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered South Placer Municipal District's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations 
during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

During our audit we became aware of several matters that is an opportunity for strengthening internal controls and 
operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comment and suggestion 
regarding the matter. This letter does not affect our report dated January 4, 2018, on the financial statements of 
South Placer Municipal Utility District. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, and others 
within the South Placer Municipal District, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Mann, Urrutia, Nelson, CPAs & Associates, LLP 

Sacramento, California 

January 4, 2018 
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CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS

FINANCIAL REPORTING

During our review of the journal entry process, we noted the journal entries are being prepared by authorized 
personnel, however there is no indication of review. We recommend that the Administrative Services Manager 
produce monthly Journal Reports which display journal entries during the month. Once produced, these can be 
reviewed and signed off by the Administrative Services Manager and outside CPA.  

Management Response: 
The District agrees with this recommendation and will prepare monthly reports for review and signatories. 

PAYROLL

During our review of the payroll process, we noted at the end of every month the outside CPA reviews the monthly 
payroll information during the bank reconciliation. The bank reconciliation should be initialed by the outside CPA, 
however the October reconciliation did not have the appropriate initials. We did see evidence of the CPA’s 
handwriting which indicated there was some review. We recommend that every month the outside CPA makes sure 
to initial the bank reconciliation appropriately.  

Management Response: 
The District agrees with this recommendation, it was a minor oversight to omit signing the bank reconciliation cover 
sheet. 

During our payroll walkthrough process, we discussed the process of reviewing the payroll register with the 
Administrative Services Assistant III and the Administrative Services Manager. The Administrative Services Assistant 
III performs an initial review, and then the Administrative Services Manager compares the EFT confirmation from the 
bank to the payroll register after processing. However, the payroll register are not printed out and initialed, therefore 
there is no evidence of the review process. We recommend the payroll registers are printed out and initialed after 
each review. We also recommend the EFT confirmations are initialed and filed with the payroll register.  

Management Response: 
The District agrees with this recommendation and has begun the recommended process. 

CASH DISBURSEMENT

During our credit card testing, we noted the General Manager does not approve the Administrative Services 
Manager’s credit card transactions. We recommend that all credit card transactions be approved by the Department 
Head.  

Management Response: 
The General Manager does routinely review all credit card transactions. The District will begin a process whereby the 
General Manager will review all credit card transactions. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

During our accounts receivable testing, the client was unable to provide us with supporting document for $422,153 in 
unapplied credits. This is due to system limitation, which prevents producing this report on a date other than the 
current date. As such, we recommend that in the future, the District run this report on June 30

th
 to provide proper

support for the balance.  

Management Response:   
The District agrees with this comment, the Tyler Incode Software has limitations in producing unapplied credit reports 
on alternate dates. A report has been prepared to run routinely on June 30th along with other similar reports. 
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION  
January 4, 2018 
 

Honorable SPMUD Board Directors 

TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD: 

 
The South Placer Municipal Utility District 

(the District) staff submits to you the Annual 

Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 

2017. The Annual Financial Report gives an 
assessment of the District’s financial 

condition, informs readers about District 

services, gives details of infrastructure 

replacement projects, discusses current 
issues, and provides financial and 

demographic trend information.   This letter 

of transmittal is designed to complement 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and 
should be read in conjunction with it. 

 

The District’s financial statements were 

audited by Mann, Urrutia, Nelson, Certified 
Public Accountants.  Management believes 

the Annual Financial Report is complete and 

accurate in all material respects. Internal 
controls through policies and procedures and 

the services of an outside Accountant 

safeguard assets and assure proper recording 

and reporting of transactions using 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  

 

DISTRICT OVERVIEW 

 

The Rocklin-Loomis Municipal Utility 
District was created in 1956 to provide 

sanitary sewer service to Rocklin and 

Loomis. The District is divided into five 

wards and governed by an elected five-
member Board of Directors who establish 

policy and oversee the General Manager, 

who manages the day-to-day operations.  

SPMUD MISSION 

 

 PROTECT public health and the water 
environment. 

 PROVIDE efficient and effective 

sanitary sewer service. 

 PREPARE for the future.  

 

SPMUD VISION 

 
To be a reliable, innovative operations and 

maintenance organization that preserves 

and prolongs the life of our assets, 
resulting in sustainable, efficient, cost- 

effective customer services. 

 

SPMUD VALUES 
 

1. INTEGRITY: We will be trustworthy, 

truthful and honest. 

2. STEWARDSHIP: We will be 
accountable and committed to responsible 

management and 

respect our environment. 

3. SERVICE: We will be responsive, 
reliable and respectful; putting the needs 

of the District and 

customers first. 

4. QUALITY: We will be dedicated to 

continuous improvement. 

SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
5807 Springview Drive, Rocklin, CA 95677 

(916) 786-8555 
Fax: (916) 786-8553   
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In the 1970’s the District decommissioned 

its sewage treatment facilities and began 
using the City of Roseville (City) Dry Creek 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (DCWWTP).  

In the 1980’s, the name changed to South 

Placer Municipal Utility District to refl1.ect 
its larger service area. In 2000, the District, 

the City of Roseville and Placer County 

(PC) created the South Placer Wastewater 

Authority (SPWA) to finance the 
construction of the Pleasant Grove 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (PG WWTP).   

 

In 2008, SPMUD boundaries expanded to 
match the incorporated town limits of 

Loomis, and in 2010, SPMUD annexed the 

Newcastle Sanitary District (NSD) area. The 

District provides sewer collection services in 
southwestern Placer County, CA and 

currently serves residents and businesses in 

the City of Rocklin and Town of Loomis, 

and in the unincorporated communities of 
Penryn, Newcastle and the Rodgersdale area 

of Granite Bay. Sewage is collected by the 

District and conveyed to regional 

wastewater treatment plants (WWTP) 
operated by the City of Roseville.   

 

The SPMUD service area covers 31 square 

miles as shown in Figure 1 The District 
provides service to 22,175 customers (80% 

residential and 20% commercial); this 

equates to 32,825 Equivalent Dwelling Units 

(EDU) or an equivalent population of about 
75,000 people.  Our customers discharge an 

average sewer flow of about five million 

gallons per day. The District collects the 

sewage through customer owned sewer 
laterals (the pipe connecting their building 

sewer to the sewer mainlines) and transports 

this via 273.5 miles of District owned and 

operated sewer mains (from 4” to 42” 
diameter).  The District maintains an 

additional 126.9 miles of lower laterals 

within our easement or public right-of-way. 

Other assets include our Headquarters, 

Maintenance and Corporation Yard 

facilities, 6365 manholes/flushing branches, 
13 lift stations, 12 metering sites, and related 

buildings, facilities and equipment.   

 

During FY2016/17 the monthly service 
charges remained the same, however on 

October 1, 2017 fees are set to increase. 

Local Participation Fees was increased to 

$3000 per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU). 
 

INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE  

 

The District’s customers have high 

expectation from the Board of Directors. 
They expect sewage to be contained in the 

pipes, to be treated efficiently and disposed 

of effectively. The district has developed a 

High-Risk Facilities Program that meets the 
requirements of provision D.13.vi.c of the 

Statewide General Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, 

Water Quality Order No. 2006-003 (SSS 
WDR), which requires sewer systems to 

develop a rehabilitation and replacement 

plan to identify and prioritize system 

deficiencies and implement short-term and 
long-term rehabilitation actions to address 

each deficiency. The program includes 

regular visual and TV inspections of 

manholes and sewer pipes, and a system for 
ranking the condition of sewer pipes and 

scheduling rehabilitation. Rehabilitation and 

replacement focus on sewer pipes that are at 

risk of collapse or prone to more frequent 
blockages due to pipe defects. Finally, the 

rehabilitation and replacement plan includes 

a capital improvement plan that addresses 

proper management and protection of the 
infrastructure assets. 
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FIGURE 1 – SPMUD BOUNDARIES 
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Above-grade creek crossings represent a 

unique and special risk to the District. By 
default, above-grade creek crossings are 

potential HRFs due to their immediate 

proximity to a waterway. Any failure of an 

above-grade creek crossing results in the 
potential for serious consequences to public 

health and the environment, and litigation 

and fines for the District. For these reasons, 

a separate and more detailed risk assessment 
was conducted on this subset of the 

District’s assets. 

 

The District has also embarked on a multi-
year plan to address projects identified in the 

Wastewater Collection System Evaluation 

and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP). The 

purpose of the SECAP is to provide the 
District guidance in its efforts to assure 

capacity for existing customers and 

information on how to prepare and plan for 

future development. This document 
summarizes the District’s compliance with 

provision D.13.viii – System Evaluation and 

Capacity Assurance Plan of the California 

State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ, the 

Statewide General Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems 

(SSS WDR). It is included by reference to 
the District’s Sewer System Management 

Plan (SSMP); is reviewed annually; and is 

updated as deemed necessary by District 

staff (at minimum every five years) to 
account for conditions affecting collection 

system capacity. 

 

LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 

 
Placer County is in the northern portion of 

the Sacramento Valley and has an eastern 

border that touches the Nevada state line. 

Placer County has a population of 371,600 
people and approximately 148,700 wage and 

salary jobs. The per capita income in Placer 

County is $56,830 and the average salary 

per worker is $59,866.  

 

  
Employment across Northern California 

increased by 3.3 percent in 2015, whereas 

employment in the Sacramento Valley 
(consisting of Sacramento, Yolo, Placer, El 

Dorado, Yuba and Sutter counties) increased 

by 2.5 percent. In Placer County, 4,300 

wage and salary jobs were created, 
representing a growth rate of 3.0 percent. 

The unemployment rate improved markedly, 

falling from 6.2 percent in 2014 to 5.0 

percent in 2015.  
 

During 2015, the largest employment gains 

were observed in education and healthcare 

(+1,100 jobs), construction (+1,000 jobs), 
wholesale and retail trade (+540 jobs), and 

financial activities (+470 jobs). Declines 

were not observed in any major sector. Over 

the 2010-2015 period, the Placer County 
population increased at a rate of 1.2 percent 

per year. This growth was largely due to net 

migration, as an average of 3,400 net 

migrants entered the county each year. 
 

Job growth has continued to accelerate and 

over the next few years is expected to grow 
in the areas of leisure and hospitality, 

professional and business services, 

education and healthcare, and wholesale and 

retail trade.  These sectors will account for 
83 percent of net job creation in the county. 
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Annual population is expected in the 2016-

2021 period to average 0.9 percent each 

year.  An average of 1,900 new housing 
permits are anticipated to be issued each 

year, with complete build-out extending 

beyond the year 2021.  Per capita income is 

also expected to increase on average 1.8 
percent each year.  Industrial production is 

also expected to increase on average by 2.5 

percent per year. (source - www.dot.ca.gov)  

 

ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS 

 

The District finances sewer operations 

through user charges, property tax receipts 

and miscellaneous other income.  All 
charges are based upon an Equivalent 

Dwelling Unit (EDU) and the cost of 

providing the sewer service is allocated to 

each customer proportionate to the strength 
and flow of the wastewater generated in 

EDUs. An EDU is intended to represent the 

wastewater generated by a single residential 

consumer. Based upon previous strength and 
flow monitoring studies, one EDU is 

equivalent to 200 gallons of wastewater 

daily with wastewater strength of less than 

200 mg/1 B.O.D. and/or suspended solids. 
Service Charge revenues are derived from 

flat rates charged for sewer service, based 

upon the EDU’s assigned to each account. 

 
The top priority of the District is to provide 

a level of service that meets state and federal 

regulatory requirements, and the demands 

and expectations of its customers.  

Customers of the District have an 
expectation for cost-effective reliable sewer 

operations, with minimal sewage spills that 

have the capacity to impact the environment. 

Furthermore, District customers have 
become accustomed to excellent customer 

service and response at low cost. The 

District currently has some of the lowest 

monthly service charge for sewer service.  
 

In 2013 and most recently in 2017 the 

District developed forward thinking 

Strategic Plans.  Strategic Plan 2018/2022 
establishes the blueprint for the District’s 

current activities and response to future 

activities and changing priorities. The 

Strategic Plan confirms the District’s 
Mission, Vision and Core Values as a 

customer driven utility dedicated to 

protecting the public health by providing 

quality sanitary sewer collection service 
while protecting and preserving our water 

environment and resources for future 

generations. The plan is used to guide the 

annual budget process and capture the 
Board’s goals and objectives to be achieved 

during the planning period while meeting 

the District’s mission to Protect, Provide and 

Prepare.  
 

Careful stewardship of financial resources, 

along with a focus on long-term financial 

planning, provides the District with a firm 
financial base. The District has shown its 

financial abilities in capably responding to 

the operational requirements of the sewer 

system while responsibly investing in 
infrastructure replacement. The Board of 

Directors’ policies carefully coordinate 

reasonable rate increases to meet the 

District’s mission.  
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PUBLIC OUTREACH 

 

The District conducts regular Board 

Meetings that are open to the public.  They 

are normally held on the first Thursday of 
the month.  Dates can be found on the 

District website.  The District’s website, 

continues to be updated to be more 

informative, and easier to use, provides 
information about SPMUD’s activities.  The 

website can be found at www.spmud.ca.gov.   

 

District staff provide presentations to civic 
groups, service organizations, and local 

schools.  The District also engages the 

public through newsletters, door hangars and 

written notices.   

BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

 

The Annual Budget is a blueprint of planned 

operating, public goods and debt service 
expenses, capital expenditures and multi-

year projects for each fiscal year beginning 

on July 1st and ending on June 30th. For 

each fiscal year, the South Placer Municipal 
Utility District adopts an annual budget that 

provides the Board of Directors with the 

upcoming fiscal year revenues and expenses 

for the General and Capital Funds. The 
Budget’s primary use is as a fiscal planning 

tool to accomplish the District’s strategic 

goals and objectives. 

 
The annual budget conforms to all policies 

previously adopted by the Board of 

Directors. District staff work with the Board 

of Directors’ Fee & Finance Committee to 
develop the annual budget.  Staff presents 

the budget at public workshops and 

meetings before adoption.   

 
 

 

LOOKING FORWARD TO THE 

FUTURE 

 

The top priority of the District is to provide 

a level of service that meets state and federal 
regulatory requirements, and the demands 

and expectations of its customers.  The long-

term goal of the 5-year Financial Plan is to 

develop a utility system that is stable, 
requiring limited increases in the cost of 

services, minimizing those increases that are 

required, and provide sufficient revenues to 

cover necessary operations and maintenance 
programs, capital investment and reserves to 

meet the utility’s stated needs. 

 

Because the District’s customers bear the 
ultimate cost of service, there exists a need 

to have a financial plan that will permit the 

utility to meet its priorities at an affordable 

and stable cost for the long-term.  To this 
end, the District operates under the 

Municipal Utility District Act and is set up 

as an enterprise fund to operate very much 

like a business.  Sewer customers are not 
subsidized by the General Fund taxpayers of 

any local government and must be 

individually self-sustaining.  

 
In May 2017, the Board approved a 5-year 

financial plan and cost of service study 

which resulted in an increase in wastewater 

rates for the first time in 5 years. The 3-
consecutive annual increases in rates will 

fully fund all operations, maintenance and 

regulatory obligations as well as capital 

improvements until 2022. The increase will 
also provide funding of the District’s 

pension and other post-employment benefit 

obligations as well as meet the debt 

indenture revenue requirements mandated 
by the South Placer Wastewater Authority. 

 

Capital Outlays are categorized to their 

respective fund centers. Those projects 
designated as Capital Replacement & 
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Rehabilitation (R&R) projects would be 

funded by accumulated depreciation; those 
projects designated as Capital Improvement 

Projects (CIP) and Expansion projects are 

funded through the accumulation of the 

Sewer Participation fee; the remainder of the 
District’s projects would be pay-as-you-go 

through the General Fund. It is only those 

projects covered by the General Fund that 

are directly funded as pay-as-you-go by 
customers through the monthly service 

charge. 

 

The District’s 5-year financial plan and cost 
of service study included a capital 

improvement plan to take the district out to 

fiscal Year 2021/22 and contains District 

planned construction of R&R projects, CIP 
projects and General Fund projects. 

 

DISTRICT HONORS 

 

In 2016, the South Placer Municipal Utility 

District was awarded the District 
Transparency Certificate of Excellence by 

the Special District Leadership Foundation 

for outstanding efforts to promote 

transparency and good governance. In order 
to receive the award, SPMUD demonstrated 

the completion of eight essential governance 

transparency requirements, including 

conducting ethics training for all city council 
members; properly conducting open and 

public meetings; and filing financial 

transactions and compensation reports with 

the State Controller in a timely manner.  
 

The District also fulfilled 15 website 

requirements, including providing readily 

available information to the public, such as 
board agendas, past minutes, current budget 

and the most recent financial audit. 

 

 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT CONTRIBUTING STAFF 

Herb Niederberger General Manager  

Joanna Belanger Administrative Services Manager and Board Secretary 
Sam Rose  Superintendent  

Eric Nielsen  District Engineer 

 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Herb Niederberger 

General Manager 
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DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

Gerald Mitchell  WARD 1:  Southwest central area of the City of Rocklin lying north 

of Interstate 80, including the Woodside, Five Star/Fairway Heights, 

south Stanford Ranch, and Sunset neighborhoods, as well as the west 
parts of old Rocklin. 

 

William Dickinson WARD 2:  Northwest part of the City of Rocklin lying on the east 

side of Highway 65 in the Sunset West and north central Stanford 
Ranch neighborhoods. 

 

John Murdock  WARD 3:  Southeast Rocklin lying south of Interstate 80 in the 

vicinity of Sierra Community College. Also includes south Loomis and 
a stretch of land extending into Granite Bay in the Joe Rogers Road 

area. 

 

Victor Markey  WARD 4:  Community of Penryn, the Town of Loomis lying north of 
King Road, extending west into the north part of the City of Rocklin in 

the Whitney Ranch and north Whitney Oaks neighborhoods. 

 

James Williams  WARD 5:  West and central part of the Town of Loomis lying 
between Interstate 80 and King Road, extending west into the City of 

Rocklin into the east Stanford Ranch and south Whitney Oaks 

neighborhoods, as well as the east part of old Rocklin. 
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ORGANIZATION 
 

The District is organized into three departments, Field Services, Technical Services and 

Administrative Services. In general, all operation and maintenance functions are performed by 

Field Services staff; all engineering, development improvements, construction activity and 

inspections are overseen by Technical Services staff; and, all office, billing, accounting, 
customer service, financial and administrative functions are performed by Administrative 

Service staff. District Audit and Legal Services are performed under contract. Employees and 

Management salaries are governed by a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between each of 

the two employee groups and the Board of Directors. 
 

 

DISTRICT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART FY 17/18 
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To the Board of Directors 
South Placer Municipal Utility District 
Rocklin, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the South Placer Utility 
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities of South Placer Municipal Utility District as of June 30, 2017, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

SACRAMENTO OFFICE • 2515 VENTURE OAKS WAY, SUITE 135 • SACRAMENTO , CA 95833 • 0. 9 16.929.0540 • F. 9 16.929.0541 

WWW.MUNCPAS.COM 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis, schedules related to the District's net pension liability, and the OPEB schedule of funding progress as 
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 
to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the District's basic financial statements. The schedule of operating expenses is presented for purposes of addtional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of operating expenses is the responsiblity of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the schedule of operating expenses is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 4, 2018, on our 
consideration of the South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

~dYLJ-(YAs 
Sacramento, California 
January 4, 2018 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 (FY 2016/17) 

 

The purpose of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDA) is to provide a fact-based 
summary of the financial status of the South Placer Municipal Utility District (District) from a 

management’s perspective. This report provides an indication of the District’s financial 

performance for fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 (FY 2016/17) 

and should be reviewed in conjunction with the audited financial statements, which follow this 
MDA. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

In May 2017, the Board approved a 5-year financial plan and cost of service study which 

resulted in an increase in wastewater rates for the first time in 5 years. The long-term goal of the 
5-year Financial Plan is to develop a utility system that is stable, requiring limited increases in 

the cost of services, minimizing those increases that are required, and provide sufficient revenues 

to cover necessary operations and maintenance programs, as well as capital investment and 

reserves to meet the utility’s stated needs. 
 

In addition to these general needs, the District determined five specific funding goals to be 

accomplished during the 5-year Financial Plan. These include: 

A. Fully funding the District’s obligations to CalPERS 
B. Fully funding the District’s annual required contribution (ARC) for Other Post-

Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

C. Maintaining minimum reserve fund balances 

D. Meeting the Debt Coverage Ratio mandated by the South Placer Wastewater Authority 
(SPWA) debt indenture 

E. Providing adequate funding for Capital Investments 

 

TABLE 1: ANNUAL DISTRICT GROWTH 

(compares major District metrics for the last two fiscal years)  
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Table 1 compares major District growth metrics for the last two fiscal years. The district added 

517 new customer accounts in FY 2016/17 representing 2.4% growth which occurred in the last 
few months of the fiscal year. The District experienced extreme weather and record rainfall 

within the District’s service area. Due to some of the older portions of the service area suffering 

from infiltration and inflow (I/I), flows to the regional sewage treatment plants saw an 18% 

increase over the previous year. 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The District’s basic financial statements are the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.  An 

important part of the basic financial statements is the accompanying notes, which provide the 
users additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, is required supplementary information to the basic 

financial statements. 

 
The Statement of Net Position includes the District’s assets and liabilities. The difference 

between assets and liabilities is reported as net position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Position account for revenue, expenses, and capital contributions and 

calculates the change in net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a 
key indicator of the District’s financial position. The Statement of Cash Flows provides the 

details on the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year. By contrast the Statement of 

Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are prepared on 

an accrual basis, meaning revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
incurred regardless of the timing of cash receipts and payments. 

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 

 

Net Position 

The condensed Statement of Net Position shown in Statistical Section at the end of this analysis 
shows the District is investing in capital assets. Since 2015, the District has been required to 

implement GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  Under the new GASB 

standards, each participating cost-sharing employer is required to report its actuarially 

determined proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, pension expense, and 
deferred outflows/deferred inflows of resources in their financial statements determined in 

conformity with GASB 68. Prior to GASB 68, the District was only required to report the actual 

payments submitted to the pension plan as an expense and no liability or deferred 

inflows/deferred outflows.  
 

The net pension liability reported in the Statement of Net Position for year ended June 30, 2017 

is summarized as follows: 

 
Items      Reporting at Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

Total Pension Liability   $16,269,009 

Fiduciary Net Position   $12,184,045 

Net Pension Liability (Asset)   $4,084,964 
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Deferred (Outflows) of Resources  ($1,127,591) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources  $396,996 

Impact on Statement of Net Position $3,354,369 

 

Pension Expense, FY 2017   $1,040,419 

 
For more information on the District’s pension plan, see Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

TABLE 2 – NET POSITION RELATED TO PENSIONS 

 

 

  06/30/16 06/30/17  Change ($)   

Total Pension Liability 15,074,379 16,269,009 1,194,630 

Fiduciary Net Position 11,938,351 12,184,045 245,694 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) 3,136,028 4,084,964 948,936 

Deferred (Outflows) Inflows Due to: 

Assumption Changes 157,749 108,116 (49,633) 

Plan Experience (16,674) (8,809) 7,865 

Investment Experience 79,081 (562,707) (641,788) 

Changes in Proportions (270,925) (359,940) (89,015) 

Differences between actual contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 

112,518 283,736 171,218 

Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 

(164,024) (190,991) (26,967) 

Net Deferred (Outflows) Inflows (102,275) (730,595) (628,320) 

Impact on Statement of Net Position 3,033,753 3,354,369 320,616 

 

 

REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

 
Revenues and Expenses for the past two fiscal years are summarized in Table 3 and Table 4, 

respectively.   

 

Revenues: General Fund Revenues derived from customer service charges were up only slightly 
over last year. General fund revenue derived from permits, plan check fees and inspections 

increased by 7.1% due to increased development activity. Local home resales drove an increase 

in revenue from the Districts’ portion of the local property taxes by 10%. Revenue derived from 

interest income on General Fund investments was higher due to investment activity. Total 
General Fund Revenue used to fund ongoing operations, maintenance and administrative 

functions of the District were increased over $473,412 from the previous year. 
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Revenue received from Sewer Participation charges increased approximately $3.2 Million over 

the previous year due to increased development activities within the District boundaries. On 
February 4, 2016, the District adopted a strategy for the investment of District funds that resulted 

in a significant increase in the rate of return (reported as interest in Table 3) on District funds.  

Total SPMUD revenue reported for FY 2016/17 showed an increase of $3.11 Million (22%) over 

the previous year.  The Loan Repayment for NSD – PRSC (Project Related Service Charges) is 
included in Sewer Service Charges and reported as $196,175 for FY 16/17.  

 

 

TABLE 3: REVENUE 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 The following charts represent the FY 16/17 Revenues for each funding source.

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

FISCAL YR 

2016/17

%  Change 

over Previous

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REVENUES 10,911,091$      11,196,600$      2.6%

PERMITS, PLAN CHECK FEES & INSPECTIONS 443,885$           475,524$           7.1%

PROPERTY TAXES 790,587$           874,218$           10.6%

INTEREST INCOME 61,938$             12,083$             -80.5%

GAIN/LOSS ON SALE FIXED ASSET DISPOSAL -$                      (27,186)$           100.0%

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 12,207,501$   12,531,239$   

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FUND

SEWER PARTICIPATION FEES  1,443,773$        4,700,227$        225.6%

INTEREST  523,523$           159,861$           -69.5%

LOAN REPAYMENT NSD - PRSC 73,973$             -$                      -100.0%

INTEREST FROM LOAN REPAYMENT PRSC (122,564)$         (120,912)$         

TOTAL CIP FUND 1,918,705$     4,739,176$     

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND 

INTEREST INCOME 47,023$             21,079$             -55.2%

TOTAL CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND 47,023$           21,079$           

TOTAL SPMUD REVENUE 14,173,229$   17,291,494$   
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 $12,531,239 , 73% 

 $4,739,176 , 27% 

 $21,079 , 0% 

FY 16/17 REVENUES 

 TOTAL GENERAL FUND  TOTAL CIP FUND  TOTAL CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND

 $11,196,600  

 $475,524  

 $874,218   $12,083   $(27,186) 

FY 16/17 GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REVENUES PERMITS, PLAN CHECK FEES & INSPECTIONS

PROPERTY TAXES INTEREST INCOME

GAIN/LOSS ON SALE FIXED ASSET DISPOSAL
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Expenses: General Fund Expenses increased from FY 2015/16 to 2016/17 by $899,900 (12%) 

from $11.2M to $12.6 M. This increase resulted from the increased costs for the UAL (Unfunded 

Accrued Liability) from CalPERS as well as increased charges from the South Placer 
Wastewater Authority (SPWA).  These charges from SPWA fund the Regional Waste Water 

Treatment Plant (RWWTP) Operations and Maintenance (O&M) and Rehabilitation and 

Replacement (R&R) Programs. To offset these increased expenses, District staff reduced locally 

controlled expenses by over 9.8%.   
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TABLE 4 – EXPENSES 

 

 
General Fund Revenues of $12.20M exceeded General Fund Expenses (not including Capital 
Outlays) of $11.32M).  

 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

Capital Outlays are categorized to their respective fund centers. For example, those projects 

designated as Capital Replacement & Rehabilitation projects would be funded by accumulated 
depreciation; those projects designated as Capital Improvement projects (CIP) and Expansion 

projects are funded through the accumulation of the Sewer Participation fee; the remainder of the 

District’s projects would be pay-as-you-go through the General Fund. 

 

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

FISCAL YR 

2016/17

%  Change 

over Previous

Salaries/Wages 1,945,270$         2,021,529$         3.9%

FICA - Social Security 139,092$            134,846$            -3.1%

CalPERS Retirement 264,783$            459,750$            73.6%

CalPERS UAL -$                       580,669$            

457 Retirement 42,608$              46,575$              9.3%

Insurance Benefits 505,351$            496,890$            -1.7%

Pers OPEB 203,965$            216,683$            6.2%

Sub Total Salaries & Benefits 3,101,069$      3,956,942$      27.6%

Property & Liability Insurance 92,070$              98,407$              6.9%

Professional Services 33,848$              59,643$              76.2%

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 55,333$              82,277$              48.7%

Professional Development 31,479$              33,384$              6.1%

Legal Services 74,276$              111,568$            50.2%

Utility Billing/Banking Expense 150,350$            163,984$            9.1%

Other Operating Expenses 66,113$              19,892$              -69.9%

General Operating Supplies & Maintenance 139,038$            158,048$            13.7%

Gas & Oil Expenses 25,617$              29,109$              13.6%

Safety Gear/Uniforms 11,266$              16,128$              43.2%

Utilities 105,851$            134,642$            27.2%

Repair/Maintenance Agreements 56,212$              74,792$              33.1%

Lift Station & Flow Recorder Program 29,600$              46,533$              57.2%

Regulatory Compliance/Government Fees 13,857$              39,289$              183.5%

Building & Grounds Maintenance 11,266$              39,810$              253.4%

Asphalt Paving -$                       6,795$                100.0%

Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses 896,176$         1,114,301$      24.3%

RWWTP Maintenance & Operations 4,513,821$         4,711,758$         4.4%

RWWTP Rehab & Replacement 1,312,368$         1,505,199$         14.7%

Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses 5,826,189$      6,216,957$      6.7%

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation 9,823,434$      11,288,200$    14.9%

Depreciation expense 1,381,819$         1,343,872$         -2.7%

Total General Fund Expenses 11,205,253$    12,632,072$    12.7%
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The District budgeted $3.61M in Capital Outlay during FY 2016/17 but only expended $1.26M 

consisting of $87,290 in General Fund - 100 projects, $774,492 in CIP & Expansion fund – 300 
projects, and $404,441 in Capital Rehabilitation & Replacement fund – 400 projects. 

 

The District also received $2.8M in sewer asset contributions from new development. This 

included 7.07 miles of gravity sewer pipe, and 194 manholes/flushing branches. A list of the 
District’s Capital Projects is included in Table 5.  

 

TABLE 5: CAPITAL OUTLAY ACTIVITY 
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For additional information on Capital Assets, see Note 1 in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 
The District does not currently have any debt in the sense of conventional loans or bond 

financing of District Improvements. The District, the City of Roseville and Placer County (PC) 

are participants in the South Placer Wastewater Authority (SPWA) with the intended purpose to 

finance the construction of the Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant (PG WWTP) through 
bonds, low-interest loans or other types of debt. As such, the district is subject to the SPWA 

Funding Agreement and debt indenture. 

 

The SPWA Funding Agreement established a Rate Stabilization Account to be used for the 
payment of debt service on the Bonds and other costs of the Authority. Monthly contributions of 

regional connection fees are deposited into the Rate Stabilization Account, and SPWA pays the 

debt service and other costs from the Account on behalf of each member of SPWA, based on 

each member’s proportionate share. As of April 30, 2016, the District maintained a balance of 
$43,730,927 in the Rate Stabilization Account on deposit with the Authority. Per the last 

approved financial statement accepted by the SPWA, the annual SPWA Debt assigned to 

SPMUD was $2,075,623. Without any changes, the District currently has approximately 21 

years’ worth of debt service on account with SPWA. SPWA is proposing $80M in Capital 
Improvements and Treatment Upgrades at the PG WWTP to prepare for regional growth, 

incorporate energy related improvements and to maximize solids digestion. SPWA is proposing 

 $87,290 , 7% 

 $774,492 , 61% 

 $404,441 , 32% 

Capital Outlay FY 16/17 By Fund 

General Fund Capital -
100

CIP & Expansion - 300

Capital Replacement &
Rehabiliation - 400
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to finance this construction through a blend of bond financing, State Revolving Fund loans and 

cash payments. District staff is estimating that this will increase the debt payment assigned to the 
District from $2.075M to $3.204M over the 5-year Financial Plan. 

 

In accordance with the SPWA debt indenture, SPMUD has covenanted to prescribe and collect 

rates and charges sufficient to yield net revenues at least equivalent to 110% of its share of debt 
service. The source of funding for this reserve can be accounted for from all SPMUD revenues 

and are expected to provide Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR) of 110% over the lives of the Bonds. 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

A comparison of previous year’s results and the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2017/18 is 
included in Table 6.  

 

Revenue: The Economic forecast for growth within the District’s service area boundaries looks 

favorable. There is now a backlog of development proposals under review which should allow 
the District to add an additional 500 EDUs during the next fiscal year. The Federal Government 

has kept its benchmark interest rate at a range between zero and one-quarter percent and this will 

continue to depress interest income received on investments. The District will be reviewing its 

investment policy to enhance revenue potential through diversification of the investment 
portfolio. Accounting for all revenue sources indicates that revenues will continue to be flat.  

 

In May 2017, the Board approved a 5-year financial plan and cost of service study which 

resulted in an increase in wastewater rates for the first time in 5 years. The monthly service rate 
is scheduled to increase from $28/EDU to $31/EDU in September 2017, with other scheduled 

increases to occur on July 1 of 2018 and 2019 of $34 and $36/EDU/month respectively. 

Revenues are expected to increase accordingly. 

TABLE 6: FY 2017/18 BUDGET REVIEW 

SPMUD REVENUE 

 
 

Expenses: Indexes for electricity, and natural gas have been declining which is helping to keep 
those related costs down; however, the recently enacted California Gas Tax will impact overall 

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

FISCAL YR 

2016/17

BUDGETED 

FISCAL YR 

2017/18

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 12,207,501$   12,531,239$   13,386,164$      

TOTAL CIP FUND 1,918,705$     4,739,176$     2,475,000$        

TOTAL CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND 47,023$           21,079$           977,500.00$      

TOTAL SPMUD REVENUE 14,173,229$   17,291,494$   16,838,664$      
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fuel purchase for the coming year. The District has been successful keeping a cap on locally 

controlled expenses as well. Total charges from SPWA continue to rise, which constitute over 
half of the expenses incurred by the District annually. The previous year’s drought and last 

year’s record rainfall have impacted flows to sewers which may necessitate a review of the 

sewage allocation to the RWWTP by the SPWA partners.  Projected General Fund expenses are 

shown in Table 7. 
 

TABLE 7: FY 2017/18 BUDGET REVIEW 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

 
 

As part of the 5-year Financial Plan and Cost of Services study, the District projected expenses 

to the year 2022. One of the major components affecting salary and benefits is the objective to 

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

FISCAL YR 

2016/17

BUDGETED 

FISCAL YR 

2017/18

Salaries/Wages 1,945,270$         2,021,529$         2,271,000$           

FICA - Social Security 139,092$            134,846$            175,000$              

CalPERS Retirement 264,783$            459,750$            340,000$              

457 Retirement 42,608$              46,575$              80,600$                

CalPERS UAL -$                       580,669$            300,000$              

Insurance Benefits 505,351$            496,890$            605,000$              

Pers OPEB 203,965$            216,683$            275,000$              

Sub Total Salaries & Benefits 3,101,069$      3,956,942$      4,046,600$        

Property & Liability Insurance 92,070$              98,407$              120,000$              

Professional Services 33,848$              59,643$              107,000$              

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 55,333$              82,277$              85,000$                

Professional Development 31,479$              33,384$              48,000$                

Legal Services 74,276$              111,568$            100,000$              

Utility Billing/Banking Expense 150,350$            163,984$            180,000$              

Other Operating Expenses 66,113$              19,892$              57,800$                

General Operating Supplies & Maintenance 139,038$            158,048$            140,000$              

Gas & Oil Expenses 25,617$              29,109$              35,000$                

Safety Gear/Uniforms 11,266$              16,128$              26,000$                

Utilities 105,851$            134,642$            135,000$              

Repair/Maintenance Agreements 56,212$              74,792$              101,000$              

Lift Station & Flow Recorder Programs 29,600$              46,533$              35,000$                

Regulatory Compliance/Government Fees 13,857$              39,289$              57,000$                

Building & Grounds Maintenance 11,266$              39,810$              60,000$                

Asphalt Paving -$                       6,795$                25,000$                

Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses 896,176$         1,114,301$      1,311,800$        

RWWTP Maintenance & Operations 4,513,821$         4,711,758$         4,781,000$           

RWWTP Rehab & Replacement 1,312,368$         1,505,199$         1,606,000$           

Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses 5,826,189$      6,216,957$      6,387,000$        

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation 9,823,434$      11,288,200$    11,745,400$      

Depreciation expense 1,381,819$         1,343,872$         1,350,600$           

Total General Fund Expenses 
11,205,253$    12,632,072$    13,096,000$      
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fully funding the District’s obligations to CalPERS as well as funding the District’s annual 

required contribution (ARC) for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). 
 

SPMUD has 39 approved personnel positions that include 5 elected, 2 contracted, 4 

management, 2 supervisors, and 26 staff positions; there are currently 27 FTE. The MOU’s for 

employees and management were negotiated in FY16/17, covering FY17/18 & 18/19 & 19/20, 
Cost of Living increases are tied to the Consumer Cost Index. 

 

Capital: The District anticipates increased capital facility construction in the coming years with 

the installation of the Foothill Trunk and the Loomis Basin Diversion Trunk. The District has 
sufficient funds available to construct these facilities on a pay-as-you-go and does not anticipate 

the need to secure debt to finance these upcoming projects. The District will be drawing down 

some of these reserves in future years to fund these ongoing construction projects and to conform 

with the District’s adopted reserve policy.  A summary of the FY 17/18 Budget Review Capital 
Projects is shown in Table 8. 

 

TABLE 8: FY17/18 BUDGET REVIEW 

CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Operating
Fund CIP Fund

Capital
Replacement

Fund Total

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 6,832,626 $ 3,987,451 $ 3,908,406 $ 14,728,483
Investments (Note 2) 9,126,868 16,149,507 15,916,809 41,193,184
Accounts receivable 3,939,765 - - 3,939,765
Prepaid expenses 17,536 - - 17,536

Total Current Assets 19,916,795 20,136,958 19,825,215 59,878,968

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets (net of accumulation depreciation) (Note 3) 66,239,625 - - 66,239,625
Advance to other funds (Note 4) - 5,010,426 - 5,010,426

Total Non-Current Assets 66,239,625 5,010,426 - 71,250,051

TOTAL ASSETS 86,156,420 25,147,384 19,825,215 131,129,019

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Changes in the net pension liability (Note 5) 1,127,591 - - 1,127,591

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES $ 87,284,011 $ 25,147,384 $ 19,825,215 $ 132,256,610

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,438,708 $ - $ - $ 1,438,708
Other accrued liabilities 244,190 - - 244,190
Compensated absences 202,705 - - 202,705

Total Current Liabilities 1,885,603 - - 1,885,603

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Net pension liability (Note 5) 4,084,964 - - 4,084,964
Advance from other funds (Note 4) 5,010,426 - - 5,010,426

Total Long-Term Liabilities 9,095,390 - - 9,095,390

TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,980,993 - - 10,980,993

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Changes in the net pension liability (Note 5) 396,996 - - 396,996

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 61,229,199 - - 61,229,199
Unrestricted 14,676,823 20,136,958 19,825,215 54,638,996
Restricted - 5,010,426 - 5,010,426

TOTAL NET POSITION 75,906,022 25,147,384 19,825,215 120,878,621

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $ 87,284,011 $ 25,147,384 $ 19,825,215 $ 132,256,610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

Operating
Fund CIP Fund

Capital
Replacement

Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Sewer charges $ 11,196,600 $ - $ - $ 11,196,600
Connection charges - 4,700,227 - 4,700,227
Permits, fees, and inspections 475,524 - - 475,524

Total Operating Revenues 11,672,124 4,700,227 - 16,372,351

OPERATING EXPENSES

Collection and treatment 6,738,350 - 18,361 6,756,711
Administrative and general 2,226,083 - - 2,226,083
Technical services 2,323,767 - 120,173 2,443,940
Depreciation 1,343,872 - - 1,343,872

Total Operating Expenses 12,632,072 - 138,534 12,770,606

Operating income (loss) (959,948) 4,700,227 (138,534) 3,601,745

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Tax revenue 874,218 - - 874,218
Gain (loss) on sale of asset (27,186) - - (27,186)
Interest income 12,083 159,861 21,079 193,023
Interest expense (120,912) - - (120,912)

Total Nonoperating revenues 738,203 159,861 21,079 919,143

TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital Contributions 2,819,904 - - 2,819,904
Transfers in 2,447,408 - 1,680,856 4,128,264
Transfers out (1,381,819) (2,746,445) - (4,128,264)

Total Transfers and Capital Contributions 3,885,493 (2,746,445) 1,680,856 2,819,904

INCREASE IN NET POSITION 3,663,748 2,113,643 1,563,401 7,340,792

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 72,242,274 23,033,741 18,261,814 113,537,829

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 75,906,022 $ 25,147,384 $ 19,825,215 $120,878,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

Operating
Fund CIP Fund

Capital
Replacement

Fund Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers $ 11,357,841 $ 4,620,113 $ - $ 15,977,954
Payments to suppliers (6,188,929) (515,579) (138,534) (6,843,042)
Payments to employees (3,291,767) - - (3,291,767)

Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities 1,877,145 4,104,534 (138,534) 5,843,145

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Tax Revenue 874,218 - - 874,218
Net Transfers to Operating Fund 1,065,589 - - 1,065,589
Net Transfers to/from Capital Funds - (2,746,445) 1,680,856 (1,065,589)

Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Noncapital Financing
Activities 1,939,807 (2,746,445) 1,680,856 874,218

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,220,364) - - (4,220,364)
Change in advances from other funds - 77,066 - 77,066
Contributed Capital 2,819,904 - - 2,819,904

Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Capital and Related
Financing Activities (1,400,460) 77,066 - (1,323,394)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income 12,084 159,861 21,079 193,024
Interest expense (120,912) - - (120,912)
Proceeds from sale of assets 25,009 - - 25,009
Purchase of investments (872,955) (1,553,559) (1,522,764) (3,949,278)

Net Cash Used For Investing Activities (956,774) (1,393,698) (1,501,685) (3,852,157)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,459,718 41,457 40,637 1,541,812

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1, 2016 5,372,908 3,945,994 3,867,769 13,186,671

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2017 $ 6,832,626 $ 3,987,451 $ 3,908,406 $ 14,728,483

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

Operating
Fund CIP Fund

Capital
Replacement

Fund Total

 OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ (959,948) $ 4,700,227 $ (138,534) $ 3,601,745

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
Provided by (Used for) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,343,872 - - 1,343,872
Increase in net pension liability 1,681,419 - - 1,681,419
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in deferred inflows (183,177) - - (183,177)
Increase in deferred outflows (1,127,591) - - (1,127,591)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (237,217) 9,916 - (227,301)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 36,347 - - 36,347
Increase in other payables 56,869 - - 56,869
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,290,877 (605,609) - 685,268
Increase in compensated absences 52,760 - - 52,760
Decrease in advances to other funds (77,066) - - (77,066)

Total adjustments 2,837,093 (595,693) - 2,241,400

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ 1,877,145 $ 4,104,534 $ (138,534) $ 5,843,145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity 

The South Placer Municipal Utility District (the "District") operates under the Municipal Utility District Act. The Act
permits formation of multipurpose government agencies to provide public services on a regional basis. In
accordance with the Act, voters approved creating the South Placer Municipal Utility District to provide sewage
disposal facilities. The District's governing body is a Board of Directors comprised of 5 members with 4 year
staggered terms.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the South Placer Municipal Utility District (District) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

Basis of Accounting

The South Placer Municipal Utility District follows the enterprise method of accounting practices and reporting
methods approved for waste disposal districts. An enterprise type fund is a proprietary type fund used to account for
operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses excluding depreciation) of providing goods and services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they are earned and become measurable; expenses are recognized in the period incurred.

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the District. All other
revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the
primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

As described below, the client maintains three funds to run their operations:

Operation and Maintenance Reserve - The purpose of the Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Reserve Fund is to
ensure that the district will have sufficient funding available at all times to meet its operating obligations. Operating
revenue is flat rate and consistent over the year. Delinquencies are trued up through tax liens which are recoverable
twice a year. Operating expenses are generally incurred uniformly over the year, however, work can be planned or
deferred during the year to accommodate minor fluctuations in revenue. The source of funding for this reserve shall
be from Sewer Service Charges. 

Capital Improvement Fund Reserve - The purpose of the Capital Improvement Reserve is to fund on a pay-as-you-
go basis future capital facilities that are expansion or growth related. These capital improvements will be identified in
a Wastewater Collection Master Plan, a System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan or other such capital
improvement plan designated by the District. These funds are accumulated in an orderly manner in conformance
with State law and drawn down as required by growth related projected. The source of funding for the Capital
Improvement Reserve shall be the Sewer Participation Fee. 

Capital Replacement Fund (Depreciation Reserve) - The purpose of this fund is to accumulate the probable
replacement cost of equipment each year over the life of the asset, so it can be replaced readily when it becomes
obsolete, are totally depreciated or are scheduled for replacement. Annual depreciation is calculated as a function of
the depreciation schedule maintained within the District's Financial Management Software. The source of funding for
this reserve shall be in the form of an annual operating expense (transfer) to the Capital Replacement (Depreciation
Reserve) Fund. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The District shall incur an annual expense equivalent to the annual depreciation and accumulate this balance in a
Capital Replacement Fund (Depreciation Reserve) to fund replacements of assets that have reached their useful life
or are fully depreciated. 

Budgetary Reporting

The District prepares an annual operating and capital budget which is approved and adopted by the Board of
Directors. The budget serves as an approved plan to facilitate financial control and operational evaluation. California
State law does not require formal adoption of appropriated budgets for enterprise funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flows the District defines cash and cash equivalents as short-term, highly liquid
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near to their maturity that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value. This includes bank accounts, cash with Placer County, and deposits
with the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

Receivables and Payables

Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Receivables are recorded in the
financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable, and estimated refunds due. 

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments for health insurance and liability insurance reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items. 

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Capital assets include land, buildings, sewer system, equipment, office furniture and vehicles. Capital assets are
defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.  

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line basis over the useful life of the assets as follows:

Assets Useful Life

Buildings 15 - 25 years
Sewer system 75 years
General equipment 10 - 20 years
Office furniture and vehicles 5 - 15 years

Capital Contributions

Transmission and distribution system assets contributed to the District by installers are capitalized at the installers
estimated cost, which approximates fair value at the time of the District's acquisition, and is recorded as capital
contributions when received. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Risk Management

The District maintains an insurance policy with Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Insurance that
provides limits of liability for general liability, auto and an additional umbrella policy. The District also maintains
workers compensation insurance through Special District Risk Management Authority, with the employer's liability
limit of $10,000,000 per occurrence.

Net Position

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, non-operating revenues and expenses and
capital contributions. Net position is classified in the following three components:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related
debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the
calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by any creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At June 30, 2017, restricted net position consisted of the
total outstanding Newcastle Sanitary District (NSD) loan receivable balance (see note 4). South Placer Municipal
Utility District and Newcastle Sanitary District have entered into agreements relating to the annexation of the NSD
service area to SPMUD and the financing of the 'NSD project' costs associated with the annexation required the
creation of the Newcastle Special Benefit Area (NSBA) for adoption of levying of a project-related service charge
(PRSC) for the repayment of said financing. Under SPMUD Resolutions 12-19 and 13-13, PRSC should be used
exclusively to repay the principal and interest on the amount repayable.

Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences represent the vested portion of accumulated vacation leave. In accordance with GASB 16,
the liability for accumulated leave includes all salary - related payments that are directly and incrementally connected
with leave payments to employees.

Property Taxes

The District receives property taxes from Placer County, which has been assigned the responsibility for assessment,
collections, and apportionment of property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions within the County. Secured property taxes
are levied on January 1 for the following fiscal year and on which date it becomes a lien on real property.

Secured property taxes are due in two installments on November 1 and February 1 and are delinquent after
December 10 and April 10, respectively, for the secured roll. Based on a policy by the County called the Teeter Plan,
100% of the allocated taxes are transmitted by the County to the District, eliminating the need for an allowance for
uncollectible taxes. The County, in return, receives all penalties and interest. Property taxes on the unsecured roll
are due on the January 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid by August 31. Property tax revenues are
recognized in the fiscal year they are received.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position, or balance sheet, will sometimes report a section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
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consumption of net position of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position, or balance sheet, will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquistion of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

Deferred Participation Agreements

The District has extended credit to a small number of commercial customers to pay for connection fees over time in
periods up to 5 years. These contracts, also known as deferred participation agreements are recorded as revenue
when the contracts are approved and executed. The District collects the receivable and interest for these contracts
at the current Wall Street Journal Prime rate +2% per annum, as designated in the agreement. In the event of
default or non-payment of the fees the District may impose a lien on the property to collect fees through property
taxes. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from these estimates.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 4, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were
issued.
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Future Government Accounting Standards Board Statements

These statements are not effective until July 1, 2017 or later and may be applicable to the District. However, the
District has not determined the effects, if any, on the financial statements.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or
OPEB, and replaces Statements No. 45 and 57. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and
measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures
related to OPEB. The District has not determined what impact, if any, this pronouncement will have on the financial
statements. Application of this statement is effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 85

In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of this statement is to address
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB statements. This
statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits).
Application of this statement is effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The District has not
determined what impact, if any, this pronouncement will have on the financial statements. 

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously
were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single mode for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
governments' leasing acitivities. Application of this statement is effective for the District's fiscal year ending June 30,
2021. The District has not determined what impact, if any, this pronoucement will have on the financial statements. 
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The components of the District's cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

June 30, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand $ 4,592,055
Placer County Treasury 5,094,193
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 5,042,235

Total cash and cash equivalents 14,728,483

Investments:

Fixed income securities 21,841,941
Money market mutual fund 169,585
CalTrust investment fund 19,181,658

Total investments 41,193,184

Total cash and investments $ 55,921,667

Authorized Investments of the District

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the South Placer Municipal Utility District
(District) by California Government Code 53601 (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table
also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more
restrictive) that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the
District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District investment policy.  

Authorized Investment Type Maximum Maturity

Maximum
Percentage of

Portfolio

Maximum
Investment in
One Issuer

Investment pools authorized under CA statute
governed by Government Code: $40 Million

LAIF Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 75% No Limit
Placer County Treasurer's Investment Pool N/A 75% No Limit
Investment Trust of CA (CalTrust) N/A 75% No Limit

Bank Savings Account 180 Days 75% No Limit
Federal Agencies 5 years 25% No Limit
Commercial Paper 180 Days 15% No Limit
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 180 Days 20% No Limit
Re-Purchase Agreements 180 Days 20% No Limit
US Treasury Obligations 5 years No Limit No Limit
Any other allowed investments under CGC 53601 Limited 20% No Limit
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk in the market rate changes that could adversely affect the fair values of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity
needed for District operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments (including investments held by bond
trustee) to market rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's
investments by maturity as of June 30, 2017:

Remaining Maturity 
12 months or

less 1-5 years Fair Value

Fixed income securities $ 749,547 $ 21,092,394 $ 21,841,941
Money market mutual funds 169,585 - 169,585
Local Agency Investment Fund 5,042,235 - 5,042,235
CalTRUST Investment Fund 19,181,658 - 19,181,658
Placer County Treasury 5,094,193 - 5,094,193

$ 30,237,218 $ 21,092,394 $ 51,329,612

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposit or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment of collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and
the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
government unit). The fair value or the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure the District's
deposits by pledging first deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of an
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of the fiscal year for each investment type.

Rating as of Fiscal Year End
Total S&P Moody's N/A

Local agency investment fund $ 5,042,235 Not rated
Placer County Treasury 5,094,193 Not rated
CalTrust investment fund 19,181,658 Not rated
Fixed income securities 21,841,941 AAAm
Money market mutual funds 169,585 AAAm

$ 51,329,612

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer.
There are no investments to one issuer exceeding those limits.

Investment in State Investment Pool and Other Investments

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. 

The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Placer County Treasurer's Investment Portfolio that is administered by
the Placer County Treasurer. Its primary objectives are to safeguard the principal of the funds under its control and
to meet any liquidity needs of the depositor. Maximizing the rate of return is performed consistent with the objectives
of safeguarding principal and meeting liquidity needs.

The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire
portfolio under its control.

The District is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California (CalTrust). CalTrust is a program operated
by the joint powers authority to offer a high level of current income consistent with preservation of principal. It offers
short and medium term bond funds. The objective of the investment policy is to obtain the best possible return
commensurate with the degree of risk that participants are willing to assume in obtaining such return.

The District has a portfolio Brokerage account managed by Wells Fargo Securities. This portfolio is primarily
invested in bonds issued by government sponsored enterprises and bank certificate of deposits. The portfolio is
organized with staggered maturity dates. This structure assures part of the portfolio is liquidating at par value on a
regular basis.
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Investment Valuation

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District
does not have any investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the District's assets at fair value as of June 30,
2017.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fixed income securities $ - $ 21,841,941 $ - $ 21,841,941
Money market mutual funds 169,585 - - 169,585

Total assets at fair value $ 169,585 $ 21,841,941 $ - $ 22,011,526
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 1,139,235 $ 12,326 $ - $ 1,151,561
Construction in Progress 259,534 983,058 - 1,242,592

Total capital assets not  depreciated 1,398,769 995,384 - 2,394,153

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 3,210,340 39,270 - 3,249,610
Sewer System 75,212,869 2,819,904 - 78,032,773
Equipment 1,342,242 102,467 (697) 1,444,012
Office Furniture 207,166 16,037 - 223,203
Vehicles 1,571,608 247,302 (161,982) 1,656,928

Total capital assets being depreciated 81,544,225 3,224,980 (162,679) 84,606,526

Less: accumulated depreciation
Buildings (1,627,729) (135,076) - (1,762,805)
Sewer System (15,810,887) (1,026,429) - (16,837,316)
Equipment (686,734) (110,952) 697 (796,989)
Office Furniture (193,149) (7,115) - (200,264)
Vehicles (1,209,167) (64,300) 109,787 (1,163,680)

Total accumulated depreciation (19,527,666) (1,343,872) 110,484 (20,761,054)

Capital Assets, net $ 63,415,328 $ 2,876,492 $ (52,195) $ 66,239,625

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 totaled $1,343,872.
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Advances to/from Other Funds 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Description Amount

CIP Fund Operating Fund Loan for Newcastle residents $ 5,010,426

The District loaned funds to Newcastle Sanitary District (NSD) for the purpose of covering the cost of several
reconstruction tasks required in connection with NSD facilities upgrades and regulatory compliance issues. In
February 2014, the Newcastle Sanitary District was merged into South Placer Municipal Utility District and is now a
service ward of the District. This loan was absorbed with the transfer of the capital assets contributed by the
Newcastle Sanitary District. The total outstanding loan amount as of June 30, 2017 was 5,010,426, and is classified
as restricted on the statement of net position. 

Interfund Transfers to/from Other Funds

Transfer between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Transfer From Transfer To Description of Transfer Amount

Operating Fund Capital Replacement Fund Reserve for Capital Replacement $ 1,381,819
CIP Fund Operating Fund Reimbursement for expenses 2,447,408
CIP Fund Capital Replacement Fund Reimbursement for expenses 299,037

Total Interfund Transfers $ 4,128,264
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A.  General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description – All qualified permanent full time and part-time District employees working at least 1,000 hours
per year are eligible to participate in the District's cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
(Plan) administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of
individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all
others). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools.
Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No.
68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The
District sponsors three rate plans (all miscellaneous). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statue and Agency resolution. CalPERS issues publicly availabe reports that include a full description of the
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website. 

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are
based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total
service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Active plan members in the 2.7% @ 55 Tier
I plan are required to contribute 8% of all earnings in excess of $133.33 per month. As a benefit to the District
employees, the District contributes the employee required contribution. For those employees hired on or after April
20th, 2012 the District has implemented a 2% @ 55 Tier II plan which reduces the amount of employee
contribution paid by the District to 7%. The district is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining
amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. For new employees hired after January 1, 2013 the
District benefit formula changed to a 2% @ 62 Tier III where the employee contributes the full employee
contribution of 6.25% of all earnings in excess of $133.33 per month. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The contribution requirements of the plan members
are established by state statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by
CalPERS. 

Miscellaneous

Tier I Tier II Tier III

Hire date Prior to
April 20, 2012

April 20, 2012 to
December 31, 2012

After
January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible

compensation 2.7% 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 7.000 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 24.407% 8.377% 6.572%

* Employer contribution rates include the employer normal cost rate and the unfunded accrued liability contribution.
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Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually
on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. The District's contributions to the Plan for the year ended
June 30, 2017 were $190,991.

B.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2017, the District reported a net pension liability of $4,084,964 for its proportionate shares of the
net pension liability of the Plan.

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability for the Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled
forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 was as follows:

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.1143%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.1176%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0033%

For  the  year  ended  June  30,  2017, the District recognized  pension  expense  of $1,040,419.  At June 30, 2017,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 190,991 $ -

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments 562,707 -

Changes in assumptions - 108,116

Differences between expected and actual experience 11,427 2,618

Adjustment due to differences in proportions 362,466 2,526

Difference between actual contributions made by the
employer and the employer's proportionate share of the risk
pool's total contribution - 283,736

Total $ 1,127,591 $ 396,996
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$190,991 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period
Ended June 30,

2018 $ 78,130
2019 $ 68,247
2020 $ 247,478
2021 $ 145,749

C. Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return 7.65% net of pension plan investment expenses,

includes inflation
Mortality (1) Derived Using CalPERS Membership Data for All

Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until purchasing power

protection allowance floor on purchasing power
applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more on this table, please refer to the 2014
Experience Study Report. 

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to
salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS' website
under Forms and Publications. 

D. Changes in Assumptions – There were no changes of assumptions during the measurement period ended
June 30, 2016. Deferred inflows of resources for changes in assumptions presented in the deferred
outflows/inflows table above represents the portion of the changes of assumption related to prior measurement
periods. 

E. Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the
current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees'
Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover
Testing Report" that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.  
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term market
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. Taking into account historical returns
of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds' asset classes (which includes the district plan and two cost-sharing
plans or PERF A, B, and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the
nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. The target
allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective July 1, 2015. 

Asset Class
New Strategic

Allocation
Real Return

Years 1 - 10(a)
Real Return
Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% .45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Assets 12.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Liquidity 1.0% (.55%) (1.05%)

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the
current rate:

1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $6,275,280

Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $4,084,964

1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $2,274,777

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 
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Employees of the South Placer Municipal Utility District may elect to participate in a deferred compensation plan, as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The contributions to the plan are voluntary. All amounts of
compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with these amounts, and all income
attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made available to the employees or beneficiaries)
solely the property and rights of the employees and their beneficiaries. No part of the principal or income of the trust
shall revert to the employer or be used for or diverted for purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of participants
and their beneficiaries. The District has selected CalPERS and Mass Mutual as the third party administrators of the
plan assets. Due to the fact that the District does not administer these plans, the plan activities are not included in
the District financial statements. The District matches up to a maximum per pay period based on the most current
contract with the General Manager and the most current Memorandum of Understanding with all other employees.
The District's annual pension cost for the matching contributions under the 457 deferred compensation plan was
$37,275.

NOTE 7: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Description of Plan

South Placer Public Utility District's Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan is a single employer defined benefit healthcare
plan administered by CalPERS. CalPERS provides medical insurance benefits and life insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their eligible dependents. The District approved post retirement health insurance benefits for all of its
employees effective July 1, 2007 under the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA).
Retirement eligibility is determined based on a minimum of reaching age 50 with at least 5 years of employment with
the District. For an employee retiring with 5 or more years of service with SPMUD, the District will contribute the
health benefit cost for the retiree and family members up to 100% of the greater of the CalPERS family rate for
Kaiser. A retiree with less than 5 complete years of service with the District receives no benefit, unless they have
previous employment qualifying them for CalPERS retirement, in which case they are eligible to receive the
CalPERS minimum at the time of retirement. The CalPERS minimum is set by law. The retiree is on the same
medical plan as the District's active employees, however monthly rates for coverage of covered active and retired
employees are computed separately. As of June 30, 2017, there were 15 retired employees who qualified for the
healthcare plan. The District also provides a life insurance benefit for each former employee with ten or more years
of service who retires from the District. The amount of the life insurance benefit is $15,000 ($25,000 in the case of
District management employees).

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirement of the District to contribute to the plan is established and may be amended by the
Board. Currently, employees are not required to contribute to the plan. The District's contributions are calculated on
a prefunding basis using entry age normal cost with investment gains and losses amortized over the remaining 24
year period with payments determined on a level percent of pay basis. The District has prefunded the actuarial
accrued liability (AAL) based on a calculation of the annual required contribution certified by an actuarial valuation
service. The District chose the California Employer Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) as the trustee for the plan. The
District made the net contribution for fiscal yer ended June 30, 2017 by paying health insurance providers or
reimbursing to the retiree premiums paid by the retiree. These reimbursements were not funded by CERBT. 

The District's policy is to fully fund the annual required contribution, which is determined by an actuary. For the year
ended June 30, 2017, the District made the annual required contribution (ARC) of $304,424. The required
contribution for fiscal year 2016/2017 was determined as part of the June 1, 2015 actuarial valuation.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) (or funding costs) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District's annual required contribution for the healthcare plan was $304,424.
The District's annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net obligation (asset) for the year ended June 30,
2017 were as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARC)
Normal Cost $ 167,083
30-year amortization of funded liability 116,683

Total annual required contribution 283,766

Interest on net OPEB obligation (asset) 20,658

Total annual OPEB cost 304,424

Employer contributions paid for retirees (304,424)

Net increase (decrease) in Net OPEB obligation (asset) -

Net OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year $ -

The following table represents annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and
the net OPEB obligation (asset).

Fiscal Year
Ending

Annual OPEB
Cost 

Actual Employer
Contribution

Percentage
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation (Asset)

6/30/15 $ 295,134 $ 295,134  100% -
6/30/16 $ 295,134 $ 295,134 100% -
6/30/17 $ 304,424 $ 304,424 100% -
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7: POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial date, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) was $5,835,955 and the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) for benefits was $1,778,109. The District's plan was considered fully
funded as June 30, 2008 because the District made a retrospective adoption prefunding the annual required
contribution including the UAAL in the 2007-2008 fiscal year. While the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability was
fully funded as of June 30, 2008, investment losses and actual investment returns, compared to original
assumptions, on the initial contribution created a $1,778,109 unfunded accrued liability as of July 1, 2015 the most
recent actuarial valuation date. The District has chosen to amortize the $1,778,109 unfunded accrued liability over
the remaining 24 year period with payments determined on a level percent of pay.  

Actuarial valuations for an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continuous
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates about the future are formulated.
Although the valuation results are based on values which the District's actuarial consultant believes are reasonable
assumptions, the valuation results reflect a long-term perspective and, as such, are merely an estimate of what
future costs may actually be. Deviations in any of several factors, such as future interest rates, medical cost inflation,
Medicare coverage, and changes in marital status, could result in actual costs being less or greater than estmated. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations. 

In the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Entry Age
Normal. The Entry Age Normal cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from the entry date to the
expected retirement date of prior service costs. The actuarial assumptions include a 7.2 percent discount rate, 2.75
percent wage inflation, and an annual healthcare cost medical trend of 8.5 percent initially, decreasing approximately
0.5 percent per year until reaching an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for fiscal year ending 2023 and later. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percent of pay basis over a 30-year fixed period, with 24 years
remaining as of the most recent actuarial report. 
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NOTE 8: JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

On October 1, 2000 the South Placer Wastewater Authority was created to finance and construct the new Pleasant
Grove treatment plant along with expanding facilities at the Dry Creek plant and other regional facilities. The
Authority is made up of the City of Roseville, Placer County, and South Placer Municipal Utility District. The
composition of the Board of Directors for the Authority is two directors appointed by the City of Roseville, two
directors appointed by Placer County and one director appointed by South Placer Municipal Utility District. The
agreement provides that the City will own and operate the regional facilities. The Authority originally issued a total of
$179,775,000 of fixed and variable rate bonds and later refunded to obtain more favorable interest rates in a
combination of fixed, SIFMA Index and variable rate bonds. The agreement was also amended effective October 1,
2012. South Placer Municipal Utility District proportionate share decreased from its original allocation of 25% to
22.43% for the shared operating costs and debt service on these bonds. Bond payments are funded by regional
connection fees charged by the District and remitted to the City of Roseville. Total connection fees collected by the
District and paid to the Authority under this agreement, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was $7,795,521. The
financial statements for the South Placer Wastewater Authority are availabe online at http://
roseville.ca.us/finance/general _ accounting/spwa.asp  

The District is responsible for its share of maintenance and operation expenses incurred at the Regional Treatment
plants based on the volume of flow from District lines as a percentage of total volume of flow into the plants. The
total amount calculated for South Placer Municipal Utility District during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 for
maintenance and operation expenses was $4,711,758 and an additional $1,415,169 for the District's share of rehab
project costs.

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies

The District is responsible for maintenance and operation expenses incurred at the Regional Treatment plan based
on the volume of flow from District lines as a percentage of total volume of flow into the plant. The share of the
District cost is subject to periodic review and recalculations. The amount paid versus recalculated amounts can vary
resulting in additional costs or credits to the District.

In the normal course of business, the District is subject to various lawsuits. Defense of lawsuits is typically handled
by the District's insurance carrier and losses, if any, are expected to be covered by insurance. The District's
insurance carrier also covers defense costs that are not recovered from the opposing side upon successful
resolution.

At June 30, 2017, the District had commitments with respect to various engineering services and construction
projects.

Over the years, a number of agreements have been entered into by the District and local developers for installation
of wastewater servicing facilities to the developer's projects. The developers constructed and installed the
wastewater facilities at their own expense and thereafter dedicated said facilities to the District for public use.  In
return the Developers will receive partial reimbursement from construction fees actually collected on the properties
within the project area, through the Agreement period. No contingent liability to the District is incurred for the
uncollected portion of the agreed maximum amount.

Project Name
Max

Reimbursement EDUs Benefited
Croftwood Offsite Sewer (Sierra College) $ 186,010 1,958
Poppy Ridge II Annexation $ 3,620 36
Sierra College Annexation $ 2,951,158 612
Yankee Hill Estates (Middle Antelope Creek) $ 217,375 925
Rocklin 60 - Phase I $ 68,255 999
Rocklin 60 - Phase II $ 139,621 999
Rocklin 60 - Phase III $ 794,490 70
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

LAST 10 YEARS*

          Measurement Period
2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability %0.11759 %0.11300

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 4,084,964 $ 2,403,545

Covered - employee payroll $ 1,772,689 $ 1,582,401

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of
covered - employee payroll %230.44 %151.89

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability %74.06 %78.40

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions: In 2016, there were no changes. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the
discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan
administrative expense). In 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate. 

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation. The
schedule above is only two years as shown. Fiscal year 2014 numbers are available from prior year disclosure
information. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COST SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

LAST 10 YEARS*

                       Fiscal Year-End
2017 2016

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) $ 190,991 $ 164,024

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (190,991) (164,024)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -

Covered - employee payroll 1,870,205 1,772,689

Contributions as a percentage of covered - employee payroll %10.21 %9.25

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation. The
schedule above is only two years as shown. Fiscal year 2015 numbers are available from prior year disclosure
information. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

Valuation
Date

Accrued
Liabilities (AL)

Actuarial
Value of

Assets (AVA)
Unfunded

Liabilities (UL)

Funded
Ratio

(AVA/AL) 

Annual
Covered
Payroll

UL As a %
of Payroll

7/1/11 $3,062,219 $2,729,321 $332,898 89.1% $1,387,068 24.0%
7/1/13 $3,496,648 $3,181,069 $315,579 91.1% $1,425,554 22.1%
7/1/15 $5,835,955 $4,057,846 $1,778,109 69.5% $1,725,708 102.6%
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES

AS OF JUNE 30, 2017

Administrative
and General

Collection and
Treatment

Technical
Services Total

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Benefits $ 1,138,555 $ 1,497,029 $ 740,689 $ 3,376,273
CalPERS UAL 580,669 - - 580,669
Insurance 98,407 - - 98,407
Professional Services 28,602 7,315 23,726 59,643
Vehicle Expenses - 111,386 - 111,386
Professional Development 13,628 14,457 5,299 33,384
Legal 111,568 - - 111,568
Utility Billing / Banking Expenses 163,984 - - 163,984
Operating Supplies 90,670 199,719 48,166 338,555
Capital Expenses - 18,361 120,173 138,534
Uniform Expenses - 15,440 688 16,128
Buildings / Utilities - 181,246 - 181,246
RWWTP Expenses - 4,711,758 1,505,199 6,216,957

EXPENSES BEFORE
DEPRECIATION $ 2,226,083 $ 6,756,711 $ 2,443,940 11,426,734

Depreciation 1,343,872

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 12,770,606
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
South Placer Municipal Utility District 
Rocklin, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the South Placer Municipal 
Utility District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the South Placer Municipal Utility District's basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated January 4, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the South Placer Municipal Utility 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Placer Municipal Utility District's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the South Placer Municipal Utility District's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

1\~U~ iW--0~5 
Sacramento, California 
January 4, 2018 

SACRAMENTO OFFICE • 25 15 V ENTURE OAKS W AY, Sum 135 • SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 • o. 9 16.929.0540 • F. 916.929.054 1 
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STATISTICAL SECTION  
 

The Statistical Section provides historical information on South Placer Municipal Utility 

District’s economic condition.  Specific objectives of each schedule are noted below: 
 

Contents 

Financial Trends Data 

1. Revenues & Expenses Ten Year History 
 

Revenue Capacity Data 

1. Sewer Service Charges – Utility Bill & Delinquent Accounts 

2. Annual Sewer Charges 
3. Charges/Revenue by User 

4. EDU by Class  

5. Largest Customers  

6. EDUS PER YEAR 
7. EDU Connections by Fiscal Year 

8. EDU Projections 

9. Largest Placer County Employers 

10. Property Tax Assessments 
11. Placer County Demographic Information 

FINANCIAL TRENDS DATA 

    REVENUES & EXPENSES – TEN YEAR HISTORY 

SPMUD REVENUES 07/08-16/17 

 

 

 

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REVENUES 7,126,337$    7,250,894$    7,827,078$     8,599,106$    9,489,453$    10,260,093$ 10,202,898$ 10,758,026$ 10,911,091$     11,196,600$     

PERMITS, PLAN CHECK FEES & INSP 76,833$          102,231$       53,592$           51,049$          44,720$          132,774$       538,228$       274,971$       443,885$           475,524$           

PROPERTY TAXES 739,567$       718,957$       655,680$        607,420$       575,130$       610,400$       893,954$       686,237$       790,587$           874,218$           

INTEREST -$                     -$                     56,362$           55,000$          53,997$          43,066$          64,757$          62,489$          157,401$           138,322$           

GAIN ON SALE FIXED ASSET DISPOSAL -$                     496,039$       -$                      7,279$            312$                4,039$            -$                     -$                     -$                         (27,186)$            

OTHER REVENUES 14,534$          39,219$          9,523$             15,979$          10,551$          12,271$          14,544$          23,435$              
TOTAL GENERAL FUND  7,957,271$    8,607,340$    8,602,235$     9,335,833$    10,174,163$ 11,062,643$ 11,714,381$ 11,781,723$ 12,302,964$     12,680,913$     

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

SEWER PARTICIPATION FEES  684,300$       696,125$       376,895$        267,268$       411,250$       680,755$       1,005,529$    888,198$       1,443,773$       4,629,971$        
INTEREST  1,917,496$    1,059,780$    596,744$        564,371$       589,020$       552,254$       480,439$       451,475$       668,203$           365,277$           

LOAN REPAYMENT NSD - PRSC -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     196,176$           

INTEREST & INVESTMENT/NSD - PRSC  -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     241,287$           

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND    2,601,796$    1,755,905$    973,639$        831,639$       1,000,270$    1,233,009$    1,485,968$    1,339,673$    2,111,976$       5,432,711$        

TOTAL SPMUD REVENUE 10,559,067$ 10,363,245$ 9,575,874$     10,167,472$ 11,174,433$ 12,295,652$ 13,200,349$ $13,121,396 $14,414,940 18,113,624$     

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YR                          

15/16         

FISCAL YR                          

16/17

 REVENUES LAST TEN YEARS

FISCAL YR                        

07/08

FISCAL YR                        

08/09

FISCAL YR                        

09/10

FISCAL YR                        

10/11

FISCAL YR                        

11/12

FISCAL YR                        

12/13

FISCAL YR                        

13/14

FISCAL YR                          

14/15         
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 SPMUD EXPENSES  07/08 – 16/17 

 

 

REVENUE CAPACITY DATA 
 

1. Assigned Accounts sent to Placer County for collections under Property Taxes 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS ASSIGNED TO PROPERTY TAXES

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

224,343 225,380 228,213 244,174 222,718 272,985 257,783

 

Salaries/Wages 1,020,000$    1,500,000$    1,501,373$     1,552,005$    1,496,688$    1,547,000$    1,640,392$    1,891,190$    1,945,270$       2,021,529$        

FICA - Social Security 107,666$       110,200$       114,274$        66,153$          118,921$       116,139$       128,272$       148,119$       139,092$           134,846$           

CalPERS Retirement 370,000$       395,000$       436,641$        424,438$       447,725$       346,649$       371,688$       303,641$       264,783$           459,750$           

CalPERS UAL -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                         580,669$           
457 Retirement 9,500$            9,500$            17,325$           17,550$          31,700$          34,725$          34,200$          45,575$          42,608$             46,575$              
401a Contribution -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                         -$                         
Insurance Benefits 395,000$       454,000$       457,849$        337,495$       550,777$       532,148$       376,190$       486,146$       505,353$           496,889$           
Pers OPEB -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     63,737$          108,477$       183,883$       185,422$       203,965$           216,683$           
Sub Total Salaries & Benefits (Sum Lines 1 thru 7) 1,902,166$    2,468,700$    2,527,462$     2,397,641$    2,709,548$    2,685,138$    2,734,625$    3,060,092$    3,101,070$       3,956,940$        

Property & Liability Insurance 108,000$       110,000$       118,030$        119,000$       119,931$       117,708$       95,021$          93,933$          92,070$             98,407$              
Professional Services 18,908$          19,908$          28,000$           25,274$          81,422$          101,306$       262,244$       360,800$       33,848$             59,642$              

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 15,454$          21,954$          29,169$           36,000$          48,578$          49,166$          (31,330)$        (1,561,731)$  55,333$             82,277$              
Professional Development 12,618$          28,500$          25,209$           33,720$          30,432$          31,482$          22,987$          19,893$          31,479$             33,384$              
Legal Services 65,172$          75,172$          66,118$           76,102$          87,198$          99,997$          -$                     -$                     74,276$             111,568$           
Utility Billing/Banking Expense 54,371$          78,888$          77,540$           82,824$          81,013$          107,185$       50,339$          60,028$          150,350$           163,984$           
Other Operating Expense 14,497$          16,733$          42,828$           45,195$          32,799$          40,000$          10,652$          11,565$          66,113$             19,892$              
General Operating Supplies & Maintenance 57,862$          67,682$          63,493$           74,000$          78,123$          108,993$       122,137$       1,282,457$    139,038$           158,048$           
Gas & Oil Expenses 27,544$          31,044$          24,981$           41,046$          57,067$          54,215$          130,162$       -$                     25,617$             29,109$              
Utilities 40,873$          46,873$          66,753$           63,548$          61,833$          77,489$          78,803$          97,376$          105,851$           134,642$           
Repair/Maintenance Agreements 20,000$          20,000$          26,428$           23,177$          19,054$          25,423$          1,486$            350$                56,212$             74,792$              
Regulatory Compliance/Government Fees -$                     -$                     22,727$           29,261$          21,337$          16,775$          -$                     13$                  13,857$             39,289$              
Lift Station & Flow Recorder Programs 20,000$          21,011$          17,939$           29,508$          28,829$          30,705$          -$                     -$                     29,600$             46,533$              
Building & Grounds Maintenance -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     236,467$       -$                     -$                     11,266$             39,810$              
Asphalt Paving -$                     -$                     481,520$        834,852$       476,812$       -$                     -$                     (106,503)$      -$                         6,795$                
Safety Gear/Uniforms -$                     -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     11,266$             16,128$              
Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses  (Sum Lines 9 thru 33)455,299$       537,765$       1,090,735$     1,513,507$    1,224,428$    1,096,911$    742,501$       258,181$       896,176$           1,114,300$        

RWWTP Maintenance & Operations 4,485,872$    4,485,872$    4,429,845$     3,779,816$    3,653,732$    3,000,590$    3,513,935$    4,098,779$    4,513,821$       4,711,758$        
RWWTP Rehab & Replacement 1,250,000$    1,250,000$    1,400,016$     2,624,340$    1,138,699$    1,065,997$    1,204,220$    1,956,905$    1,312,368$       1,505,199$        
Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses (Sum Lines 25 thru 26)5,735,872$    5,735,872$    5,829,861$     6,404,156$    4,792,431$    4,066,587$    4,718,155$    6,055,684$    5,826,189$       6,216,957$        

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation (Sum Lines 24+27)8,093,337$    8,742,337$    9,448,058$     10,315,304$ 8,726,407$    7,848,636$    8,195,281$    9,373,957$    9,823,435$       11,288,197$     
Depreciation expense 1,059,168$    1,067,596$    1,059,168$     1,067,596$    1,052,093$    1,022,054$    1,088,844$    1,163,361$    1,381,819$       1,343,872$        
Total General Fund O&M Expenses (Sum Lines 29+30)9,152,505$    9,809,933$    10,507,226$  11,382,900$ 9,778,500$    8,870,690$    9,284,125$    10,537,318$ 11,205,254$     12,632,069$     

FISCAL YR                         

16/17

EXPENSES LAST TEN YEARS

FISCAL YR                        

09/10

FISCAL YR                        

10/11

FISCAL YR                        

11/12

FISCAL YR                        

12/13

FISCAL YR                        

13/14

FISCAL YR                        

14/15

FISCAL YR                          

15/16      

FISCAL YR                        

07/08

FISCAL YR                        

08/09GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
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2. Historical Sewer Service Charges & Connection Fees 

 
 

3. Charges by User 

4. EDU Connections by Class 

 

Fiscal Year 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 

Service Charge $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 

Connection Fee 2,500 2,500 2,100 $3,000 $3,750 
 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Number of Equivalent Dwelling Units and Connections 

by Class of User 

As of June 30, 2017 

Class of User 

Equivalent Dwelling 

Units Connections 

Percentage of 

Connections 

Residential 25,856 21,175 96% 

Commercial 6,602 1000 4% 

Educational (1) 367 NA NA 

Total Users 32,825 22,175 100.00% 

 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Wastewater Service Charge Revenue by Class of User 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Class of User Revenue Percentage of Revenue 

Residential $8,687,616 78% 

Commercial $2,218,272 19% 

Educational $280,125 3% 

 $11,186,013 100.0% 
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5. Largest District Users  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Equivalent Dwelling Units per Year 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

FISCAL YEAR TOTAL EDU'S INCREASE % INCREASE

2006/07 27,790 836 3%

2007/08 28,665 1,044 4%

2008/09 29,130 465 2%

2009/10 29,515 385 1%

2010/11 29,619 104 0%

2011/12 30,124 505 2%

2012/13 30,419 295 1%

2013/14 30,924 505 2%

2014/15 31,241 317 1%

2015/16 31,834 593 2%

2016/17 32,825 974 3%

EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS ON SERVICE
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7. EDU Connections by Fiscal Year from FY 83/84 to 16/17  

 

 
 
 

8. EDU Projections – SPMUD SECAP (May 15) 
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9. Property Tax Assessments FY 11/12 – 16/17 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 
 

1. Placer County Demographic Data 

 
 

 

Census

Estimates 

Base 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

348,432 348,494 350,234 356,783 361,018 366,435 370,486 374,383 380,531

Provided by US Census Bureau

PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVED 

FY 2011/12 $                         575,130 

FY 2012/13 $                         863,502 

FY 2013/14 $                         893,953 

FY 2014/15 $                         871,422 

FY 2015/16 $                         790,586 

FY 2016/17 $                         874,218 
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Employer Name Location Industry 

Adventist Health  Roseville Health Services 

Alpine Meadows  Alpine Meadows Resorts 

AT&T Auburn Telephone Companies 

Backyard Bar & BBQ  Truckee Restaurants 

Consolidated 

Communications  

Roseville Communications 

County Jail  Tahoe City Government Offices-County 

Golfland Sunsplash Roseville Water Parks 

Hewlett-Packard Roseville Computer & Equipment Dealers 

Kw Commercial Roseville Real Estate 

Northstar California Truckee Resorts 

Oracle  Rocklin Computer Software-Manufacturers 

Placer County Food Stamps Auburn County Government-Social/Human 

Resources 

Placer County Office of Edu  Auburn Schools 

Placer County Sheriff  Auburn Government Offices-County 

Pride Industries  Roseville Employment Agencies & Opportunities 

Resort At Squaw Creek Alpine Meadows Resorts 

Ritz-Carlton Club Lake 

Tahoe 

Truckee Hotels & Motels 

Sheriff's Training  Auburn Government Offices-County 

Sugar Bowl Resort  Norden Hotels & Motels 

Sugar Bowl Ski Area Group 
Sls  

Norden Skiing Centers & Resorts 

Sutter Auburn Faith 

Hospital 

Auburn Hospitals 

Sutter Roseville Medical Ctr  Roseville Hospitals 

Tasq Technology  Roseville Importers (Whls) 

Thunder Valley Casino 
Resort 

Lincoln Casinos 

Unfi Western Region Div  Rocklin Food Products (Whls) 

 

2. Largest Placer County Employers 
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CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 
This Financial Report is designed to provide the District’s customers and other interested parties 

with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s 

accountability.   

 
Questions about this report should be addressed in writing to the General Manager, Herb 

Niederberger:  

 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

5807 Springview Drive 

Rocklin, CA  95677 

 

Telephone: (916) 786-8555 

Fax:   (916) 786-8553 

Web:  www.spmud.ca.gov  
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

Cc: Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Eric Nielson, District Engineer 

Subject: FY 16-17 Mid-Year Budget Adjustments 

Board Date: February 1, 2018 

Overview 

This report provides the Board with information, analysis and recommendations related to the mid-

year adjustments proposed for the Fiscal Year 2017/18, beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 

30, 2018. Please see attached background and analysis. 

Recommendation 

While Staff continues to increase effectiveness and investigate opportunities for cost efficiencies, 

the mid-year review of the budget yields recommendation to: 

1) Increase the O&M Budget from $13,096M to $13.098M

2) Decrease the Capital Budget from $11.997M to $11.909M.

Strategic Plan Goal 

The adjusted FY 2017/18 Budget continues to support the Key Areas of Focus & Desired 

Outcomes; Goals & Key Performance Indicators of the Strategic Plan Goal. 

Related District Ordinances and Policies 

This action complies with the following District Policy: 

Policy 3105 - Budget Preparation 

Fiscal Impact 

The staff recommendation to approve these adjustments will result in a decrease of $86,000 (from 

$25.093M to $25.007M) to the total District FY 2017/18 Budget. This represents a decrease of 

less than 0.35% of the original budget. 

ITEM VI.2
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Background and Analysis 

There are no anticipated adjustments to the district revenue projections or to the Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant annual operating expenses of rehabilitation pre-funding. 

Requested Mid-Year budget adjustments: 

1. The O&M budget will increase by $2,000 in Professional Development to allow for additional

safety training for field service employees.

2. The Capital Outlay budget is decreased by $118,000. The major areas of adjustment include:

a. $50,000 for the High-Risk Facilities (HRF) Creek Crossings has been deferred in order to

consider alignment alternatives presented by the Lower Clover Valley design.

b. A decrease off $10,000 to the cost to construct a new Corporation Yard perimeter fence

along Springview Drive.

c. Anticipated savings of $5,000 in the purchase of the replacement portable generator

d. An increase of $7000 to complete the removal of the Fuel Tanks.

e. An increase in $50,000 in the district Participation in Regional Projects, specifically the

District’s participation in the City of Rocklin’s Lost Avenue and Front Street

improvement projects, and PCWA’s Whitney Boulevard Mainline Replacement.

f. The District has been occupied with the regulatory permitting for the Foothill Trunk line

and does not anticipate starting construction of the project until late in the fiscal year. The

budget should reflect a reduction of $1.5 million for this fiscal year.

g. Unforeseen costs to secure necessary rights-of-way and easements as well as additional

rock excavation will result in approximately $1.55 million increase to the cost to the

Loomis Diversion Line.

h. The District inadvertently failed to budget $160,000 in reimbursements to Rocklin 60

development.

i. Anticipated savings of $90,000 to the cost to upgrade the sewer trunk relocation under the

Caltrans I80/Hwy 65 interchange.

Appendix A & B are line item summaries of the mid-year budget adjustments. Staff will be 

available during the Board meeting to respond to any questions or concerns. 
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Appendix A 

General Fund Expenditures Budget Adjustments for FY2017/18 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED

Salaries/Wages 2,271,000$      2,271,000$      -$                       

FICA - Social Security 175,000$          175,000$          -$                       

CalPERS Retirement 340,000$          340,000$          -$                       

CalPERS UAL 300,000$          300,000$          -$                       
Retirement 457 & 401a 80,600$            80,600$            -$                       
Insurance Benefits 605,000$          605,000$          -$                       
Pers OPEB 275,000$          275,000$          -$                       
Sub Total Salaries & Benefits 4,046,600$      4,046,600$      -$                       

Property & Liability Insurance 120,000$          120,000$          -$                       
Professional Services 107,000$          107,000$          -$                       

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 85,000$            85,000$            -$                       
Professional Development 48,000$            50,000$            2,000$              
Legal Services 100,000$          100,000$          -$                       
Utility Billing/Banking Expense/Printing 180,000$          180,000$          -$                       
Other Operating Expenses 57,800$            57,800$            -$                       

General Operating Supplies & Maintenance 140,000$          140,000$          -$                       
Gas & Oil Expenses 35,000$            35,000$            -$                       
Safety Gear/Uniforms 26,000$            26,000$            -$                       
Utilities 135,000$          135,000$          -$                       
Repair/Maintenance Agreements 101,000$          101,000$          -$                       
Regulatory Compliance/Government Fees 57,000$            57,000$            -$                       
Lift Station & Flow Recorder Programs 35,000$            35,000$            -$                       
Building & Grounds Maintenance 60,000$            60,000$            -$                       
Asphalt Paving 25,000$            25,000$            -$                       
Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses 1,311,800$      1,313,800$      2,000$              

RWWTP Maintenance & Operations 4,781,000$      4,781,000$      -$                       
RWWTP Rehab & Replacement 1,606,000$      1,606,000$      -$                       
Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses 6,387,000$      6,387,000$      -$                       

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation 11,745,400$    11,747,400$    2,000$              
Depreciation expense 1,350,600$      1,350,600$      -$                       

Total General Fund Expenses 13,096,000$    13,098,000$    2,000$              

REQUESTED 

VARIANCE

MIDYEAR FISCAL 

YR 17/18

FISCAL YR                         

17/18GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
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Appendix B 

Capital Expenditures Budget Adjustments for FY2017/18 

 

 

 
  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
APPROVED FY 

2017/18 BUDGET

MID YEAR 

REQUESTED 

ADJUSTED 

BUDGET 17/18

REQUESTED 

VARIANCE 

Board Room Audio/Visual upgrades 5,000$              5,000$              -$                       

Software Upgrades/Tyler 5,000$              5,000$              -$                       

Computers/Office Furniture 20,000$            20,000$            -$                       
HQ Front Office/Reception Area 10,000$            10,000$            -$                       

Energy Upgrades 200,000$         200,000$         -$                       

Archiving/Disaster Development Plan 30,000$            30,000$            -$                       

Easement Roadway Replacements 35,000$            35,000$            -$                       

HRF Creek Crossings - Design & Permitting 50,000$            -$                       (50,000)$          

Software/Data Acquisition 11,000$            11,000$            -$                       

System Improvements 155,000$         155,000$         -$                       

Newcastle Master Plan Improvements 200,000$         200,000$         -$                       

Corporation Yard Master Plan Improvements 50,000$            50,000$            -$                       

Lower Clover Valley Trunk - Design 410,000$         410,000$         -$                       

Corporation Yard Perimeter Fencing Upgrades 110,000$         100,000$         (10,000)$          

Lateral Camera Replacements 37,000$            37,000$            -$                       

Portable Generator Replacement 82,000$            77,000$            (5,000)$            

Portable Generator Connection Upgrades Lift Stations 20,000$            20,000$            -$                       

Corp Yard Fuel Tank Removal 9,000$              16,000$            7,000$              

Vehicle Replacement (x3) 488,000$         488,000$         -$                       

District Participation in Regional Projects 185,000$         235,000$         50,000$            

System Rehabilitation 835,000$         835,000$         -$                       

Foothill Trunk Project - Construction 2,130,000$      430,000$         (1,700,000)$    

Rocklin 60 Ph II Reimbursement -$                       160,000$         160,000$         

Loomis Diversion Trunkline - Construction 5,960,000$      7,510,000$      1,550,000$      

CalTrans Relocation I80/Hwy65 960,000$         870,000$         (90,000)$          

Total Capital Improvements 11,997,000$   11,909,000$   (88,000)$          
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ITEM VII.2 GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, GM 

Date: February 1, 2018 

Subject:  General Manager Monthly Staff Report – January 2018 

1) DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Attached are the monthly status reports for the Boards information: 

A. Facility Services Department 

B. Administrative Service Department, and 

C. Technical Services Department 

The Department Managers are prepared to answer any questions from the Board. 

2) INFORMATION ITEMS

A. On January 10, 2018, the General Manager along with President Mitchell attended the 

Rocklin Chamber of Commerce Governmental Relations Committee meeting to hear an 

update of the upcoming elections process by Ryan Ronco, Placer County Clerk/Recorder 

and Registrar of Voter Elections Office.  

B. On January 17, 2018, the General Manager participated in the webinar, “Preventing 

Harassment and Creating a Respectful Workplace.” 

C. On January 18, 2018, the General Manager met with District General Counsel to discuss 

District legal needs and be updated on several items facing the District. Among the many 

items of discussion were: construction bidding, accessing the public sewer from private 

property, professional services < $5000, Vanelli Brands Deferred Payment Agreement, 

invoice from RV Max for sign reimbursement, and the notification letter to Dean and 

Perlita Dickson. 

D. On January 23, 2018, the General Manager participated in the webinar, “Required 

Harassment Prevention Training for Special District Board Members and Staff” to fulfill 

AB1825 requirements. 

E. On January 25, 2019, the General Manager, along with President Mitchell, the District’s 

representative on the South Placer Wastewater Authority (SPWA) Board. attended the 

meeting of the Authority’s Board of Directors. Authority debt, investments, rate 

stabilization fund balances and capital improvement projects were reviewed. The annual 

audit was presented, along with procedures associated with the Connection Fee Program. 
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The Authority approved resolutions approving budget adjustments and an updated SPWA 

meeting schedule. 

 

F. On January 30, 2018, the General Manager was interviewed by members of the Placer 

County Grand Jury. 

 

G. Advisory Committee Meetings:  

a. The Policy and Ordinance Advisory Committee met on January 8 and 22, 2018 to 

review Chapters 1, 2, 4 and 5 of the proposed SPMUD Sewer Code. The purpose 

of this Code is to compile into one document, applicable ordinances of the South 

Placer Municipal Utility District. Such compilation will make the laws of the 

District more accessible, readable and understandable to those persons governed by 

such laws, and by those persons administering such laws.  

 

There were no other advisory meetings this month 

 

 

3) LONG RANGE AGENDA 

 

 March 2018 

Easement Encroachment Program Update 

Resolution – Foothill Trunk Construction Contract 

 

April 2018 

Public Hearing & 1st Reading Ordinance – Sewer Code 

District Expansion Workshop 

 

June 2018 

2nd Reading Ordinance – Sewer Code 

FY 18-19 Budget Workshop  

 

July 2018 (move to June 28, 2018) 

Adopt 18-19 Budget  

Report on SPWA Issues 
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FSD Staff Report 

Page 1 of 2 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Cc: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Field Services Department Monthly Report 

Meeting Date: February 1, 2017 

Overview 

This report provides the Board with an overview of Field Services operations and maintenance 

activities from 12/23/2017 through 1/22/2018.  The work listed is not all inclusive.  

1. Recordable Accidents/Injuries (OSHA 300)

a. Zero (0)

i. 450 days without a Recordable Injury

2. Service Calls, Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) and Lift Station Alarm Calls

a. Service Calls

i. Twenty-three (23)

A. 14 - Customer’s Responsibility 

B. 09   - SPMUD Responsibility  

C. 00   - Other 

b. Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs)

i. Two (2)

A. Twenty-three (23) Days since last SSO 

B. District assumed lower lateral responsibility on March 1, 2017 

a)) There have been Twenty-four (24) Lower Lateral spills 

since 

c. Lift Station Calls

i. Four (4)

3. Safety/Training/Professional Development

a. All Field employees participated in:

i. Four (4) “Tailgate” safety sessions were held.

ii. Welding/Hot Work Safety
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FSD Staff Report 

Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Maintenance            

 

a. CCTV Mainline Segments    89 Segments  

b. CCTV Service Laterals  467 Laterals                 

c. Hydro-Clean Mainline Segments 154 Segments  

d. Hydro-Clean Service Laterals      5 Laterals 

e. Manhole Inspections   122  Manholes 

f. Manhole Cleaning     06  Manholes 

g. Rodded/Cleaned Service Laterals   05  Laterals 

h. Creek-Crossing Inspections    14  Crossings  

i. Chemical Root Treatment (Mainline)   00  Segments  

j. Chemical Root Treatment (Lateral)   04  Laterals  

k. Easement Maintenance    00  Easement(s)     

l. Vector Control (Cockroaches)   00  Manholes 

 

5. Construction  

a. Service Taps    00 Taps 

b. Lateral Installs    00  Laterals 

c. Property Line Cleanout Work 

i. Repaired   09  Cleanouts 

ii. Installed   04  Cleanout 

d. Mainline Repair   00  Mainline  

e. Service Lateral Repair  03  Lateral  

f. Service Cap-Off   00  Services 

g. Manhole Rehabilitation  00  Manholes  

h. Manhole Cleaning   01  Manholes 

i. Manhole Install   00  Manhole 

j. Easement Reconstruction              00  L.F. 

 

6. Facilities   

a. Lift Station Operations Checks 52 Operation Checks 

b. Lift Station Repair   01 Repairs Performed 

c. Lift Station Wet Well Cleaning 13 Wet Wells 

d. Lift Station Site Maintenance  02 Sites 

e. Flow Recorder Inspection  13 Sites 

f. Portable Flow Rec. Installations 00 Installations 

g. Corp Yard Water Facility  04 Operational Checks 

h. Vehicle/Equip Maintenance  03 Work Orders 

i. Vehicle/Equip Inspections  17 Work Orders 

j. Corp Yard Maint/Improvements 01 Work Orders 

 

7. Miscellaneous 

a. Advertised Two (2) contracts for Bids 

i. CIPP Pipe Liners (Re-Bid) 

ii. Newcastle Sewer Repairs 

b. Wellness Program Incentives (14 eligible FSD employees) 

i. 8 employees used no sick leave for the past two quarters 

ii. 5 employees used less than 1% (10.5 hours) for the past two quarters  
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ITEM VII. ASD REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

cc: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Administrative Services Department Monthly Report 

Board Mtg. Date: February 1, 2018 

FY 16/17 Audit & State Controllers Report  

Mann, Urrutia & Nelson LLP have completed the Audit of the District’s Financial Statements for 

Fiscal Year 16/17.  Their presentation will be heard at this evenings meeting.  Staff from the 

Auditing firm have also completed the State Controllers Report for filing by the end of January.   

Low Income Lifeline Rate Assistance Program 

The Low-Income-Lifeline (LIL) Program became effective on January 1, 2018, offering a 

$5/month rate assistance to customers who own and occupy a residence within the District and 

provide proof of participation in the PG&E CARE Program.  Staff have processed 24 qualified 

applications for the program.  Continued interest is anticipated to occur as each billing cycle 

receives the latest newsletter which includes information regarding the program. 

Student Intern Position 

With the recent departure of Student Intern Chance Wood, the District is now recruiting for the 

position of Student Intern.  Along with the posting on the District website, staff have also 

reached out to local colleges providing the position recruitment information. 

Board Director Harassment & Ethics Training 

AB 1661 requires all compensated local agency officials receive sexual harassment prevention 

training every 2 years.  District Board members may attend a Webinar training session through 

CSDA 06/05/18 or an on-demand Webinar session through Cal Chamber.  

AB 1234 requires that all local agency officials complete ethics training every 2 years. District 

Board members may attend an on-demand Webinar session through the Fair Political Practices 

Commission website or alternatively CSDA is offering a webinar on 03/13/18. 

Commercial Account Review 

With the assistance of Technical Services staff, Administrative Services is continuing to audit 

Commercial Accounts within the District.  If billing errors have occurred staff will notify the 

account holder of any necessary adjustments per Policy 3160 – Utility Billing Reconciliation & 

Payment Policy. 
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ITEM VII.   TSD REPORT 

 

To:   Board of Directors 

 

From:   Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

 

Cc:   Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

 

Subject:  Technical Services Department Monthly Report  

 

Board Date:  February 2, 2018 

 

 
 

Loomis Diversion Trunkline Project 

T&S Construction Company, Inc. (T&S) continued installing mainline on the Tulip LLC property 

during the month.  Blasting on Dias Lane continued in preparation for future excavation and 

installation of the sewer line.  The project team (i.e., District staff, design engineer, contractor, 

blasting subcontractors) continued coordination with PG&E, PCWA, and the Town of Loomis 

regarding the blasting efforts on Brace Road and Dias Lane.  Excavation of the bore pits for the 

bore and jack crossing of Horseshoe Bar Road has begun and the crossing will be completed next 

month. 
 

Foothill Trunk Sewer Replacement Project 

The final design of the project is complete.  The District received a response letter from the US 

Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) to the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO).  The 

District’s consultants are communicating with the Corps to expedite receipt of the permit. 
 

FOG Program 

Staff continues to populate Lucity with information regarding food service establishments (FSEs) 

and the associated grease control devices.  Staff continues toward the goal of permitting all Phase 

1 and Phase 2 FSEs (total of 140) by the end of this fiscal year.   
 

Corporation Yard Perimeter Wall Replacement 

The existing concrete masonry perimeter wall along Springview Drive needs to be replaced to 

address its deteriorated condition and to improve the security of the corporation yard.  The District 

is having the preliminary structural design and permitting plan set prepared to submit to the City 

of Rocklin.  The plan includes replacing the existing masonry wall with a wrought iron fence with 

curved pickets, screened by landscaping. 
 

Sewer Facility Mapping 

The District’s maps are being enhanced to include the point locations of the property line cleanouts 

(PLCOs) by incorporating the findings from the inspections being conducted by the lower lateral 

crew and by the systematic collection of GPS points.   
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Student Intern 

Chance Wood, a student studying at Folsom Lake College and now California State University, 

Sacramento, has been working for the District since May as a student intern.  During that time, he 

has gained work experience, completed various certifications, and assisted the District with several 

tasks.  Chance recently accepted a full-time position with the City of Sacramento as an operator at 

the Fairbairn Water Treatment Plant. 
 

Department Performance Indicators 

The following charts depict the efforts and performance of the department in four areas of work as 

of January 23rd.  Additional charts may be added in the future for other areas of work in the 

department. 
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